
  1 

 

Agenda 

   
 
Contact Officer: Michael Flowers, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 07895 213755 

 

E-mail: Michael.Flowers@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 21st March 2022 
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk  www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

 
 

A MEETING OF THE 
 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

 
WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY 29 MARCH 2022  AT 6.30 PM 
FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 

Members of the Committee: 
South Oxfordshire District Council 

Mocky Khan (Co-Chair) 

Peter Dragonetti 

George Levy 

Jane Murphy 

 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Andy Foulsham (Co-Chair) 

Amos Duveen 

Simon Howell 

Mike Pighills 

Preferred Substitutes: 
South Oxfordshire District Council 

David Bartholomew 

Sam Casey-Rerhaye 

Victoria Haval 

Alexandrine Kantor 

Axel Macdonald 

Jo Robb 

Alan Thompson 

David Turner 

Ian White 

Celia Wilson 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Nathan Boyd 

Andy Cooke 

Eric de la Harpe 

Alison Jenner 

Janet Shelley 

Elaine Ware 

 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


  2 

 

 
1  Apologies for absence   

 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.   

 
2  Minutes  (Pages 4 - 10) 

 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2022. 
 
3  Declarations of interest   

 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and any conflicts of 
interest in respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.    

 
4  Urgent business and chair's announcements   

 
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chair.   
 
5  Public participation   

 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.   
 
6  Statement of accounts - 2021/22  (Pages 11 - 48) 

 
To receive an update on the progress of the statement of accounts 2021/22 for both 
councils, and to consider the statement of accounting policies. 

 
7  Internal audit activity report - fourth quarter 2021/22  (Pages 49 - 

52) 
 

To consider the internal audit manager’s report. 

 
8  Internal audit management report - fourth quarter 2021/22  

(Pages 53 - 57) 
 

To consider the internal audit manager’s report. 

 
9  Internal audit plan - 2022/23  (Pages 58 - 73) 

 
To consider the internal audit manager’s report. 
 
 
 
 
 



  3 

 

 
10  Insourcing of exchequer services and financial management 

system upgrade  (Pages 74 - 80) 
 

To consider the report of the head of finance. 

 
11  Adoption of Oxfordshire code of conduct for councillors  

(Pages 81 - 98) 
 

To consider the report of the head of legal and democratic and monitoring officer. 

 
12  Health and safety progress review   

 
To consider the report (to follow). 

 
13  Work programme  (Pages 99 - 102) 

 
To note the committee’s work programme. 
 
 

 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 

 

 
 



 1 

Minutes 

 

  

OF A MEETING OF THE 
 

 

Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

 
HELD ON TUESDAY 25 JANUARY 2022 AT 6.30 PM 
 
FIRST FLOOR MEETING SPACE, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, 
OX14 4SB 
 

Present in the meeting room  
Members: 
South Oxfordshire District Councillors: Mocky Khan (Co-Chair in the Chair), Peter 
Dragonetti, Alexandrine Kantor (as substitute for George Levy), and Jane Murphy, 
Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Andy Foulsham (Co-Chair), Simon Howell, and 
Mike Pighills 
Officers: Michael Flowers and Simon Hewings 
 

Remote attendance:  
Committee Members: Amos Duveen 
Officers: Harry Barrington-Mountford, Ben Border, James Carpenter, Ben Coleman, 
Yvonne-Cutler Greaves, Victoria Dorman-Smith, David Fairall, Sarah James, Susie Royce, 
Richard Spraggett, John Tredrea, and Sally Truman 
Guests: Councillors Debby Hallett, Andrea Powell, Leigh Rawlins and external auditors 
Tom Archer and Kevin Suter 
 

103 Apologies for absence  
 
Councillor George Levy tendered apologies. 
 

104 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 30 November 2021 
as a correct record and agree that the chair signs them as such. 
 

105 Declarations of interest  
 
None. 
 

106 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
None. 
 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 2 

107 Public participation  
 
None. 
 

108 External auditor's annual audit letter - 2019/20  
 
The external auditor from Ernst and Young (EY) introduced the report. The external auditor 
explained that as the letter had been presented previously and included a results report, 
that he would provide an update on new matters and would respond to any questions 
raised by the committee. The external auditor added that the annual letter had a section 
for fees, but due to timing this had not yet been discussed with the councils’ chief finance 
officer and so the committee were advised not to assume the figures were the finalised 
amount. 

 
The committee asked if there had been anything the head of finance wanted to draw the 
committee to. The head of finance explained that this had been the first audit since the 
accountancy team had been brought in-house and this had occurred during the pandemic. 
He explained that it had been a protracted episode to get the accounts done, but that they 
were happy with the audit, and this would be built upon for future audits. An additional 
question was asked regarding the filling of vacant posts within the finance team. The 
answer was that the budget was increased for finance when the service was internalised, 
however there had been delays in filling the new posts, although now the team was at full 
establishment. 
 
The committee also sought further clarification on the fee for housing benefit certification 
work. The external auditor explained that the housing benefit work was a non-audit task 
that was an additional piece of assurance work on behalf of the Department of Work and 
Pensions, for which there was a base fee, but where errors were found further testing was 
required which incurred additional fees. The external auditor concluded the question by 
explaining that, if requested, he could provide a written response with further details on 
specific errors that were found. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the external auditor’s annual audit letter – 2019/20. 
 

109 External audit planning report - 2020/21  
 
The external auditor introduced the report and provided a summary of the plan and risks 
identified. The committee were informed that there were two presumed risks for a risk of 
management override of controls and incorrect revenue recognition, with these two risks 
were assessed as most likely to manifest from an inappropriate capitalization of revenue 
expenditure. Additionally, inherent risks from the value of land and buildings and the 
valuation of the pension scheme liability were subject to significant estimation, uncertainty, 
and judgment. Two new inherent risks were also identified, with the first being the 
recording of grants from Covid-19 and the risk of error due to the volume of grants 
received. The second was from errors from Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) income 
and while management had taken steps to reduce the risk, there was a possibility that 
residual errors remained in the accounts and so this was raised as an inherent risk. The 
external auditor concluded with a summary of the budget of the councils’ and concluded 
that while the work is ongoing, the drawing down of reserves meant that the latest medium 
term plan showed a significant medium term budget gap and so a risk would be raised 
regarding this. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 3 

 
The committee asked whether the risk in land valuation could be impacted by the change 
in habits from Covid-19 and changes in where people would live or work. The response 
was that the external auditors were not saying this was not a risk, but rather their report 
showed no increase nor decrease in the level of risk compared to the previous year. 
 
A question was asked on the financial sustainability for the delivery of services. The 
external auditor responded that they looked into whether services were sustainable and 
concluded that the drawing of reserves over a sustained period of time was not 
sustainable in the medium term, and therefore they would want to see a direction of travel 
from the councils to show they would take appropriate action. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the external auditor’s planning report – 2020/21. 
 

110 Internal audit activity report - third quarter 2021/22  
 
The internal audit manager introduced the report and provided an update on the progress 
of ongoing audit work. The officer explained that, since the last committee meeting, six 
audits had been completed with only one resulting in a limited assurance rating, which was 
property management for the 2021/22 period. 

 
John Tredrea, the auditor, explained that internal audit had been approached by the 
previous property manager to conduct a review of property compliance management 
which could help with the corporate landlord project taking place across the councils. The 
aim was to help identify any high-risk areas and control weaknesses which could assist the 
property team in planning their approach to the revised corporate landlord model. The 
auditor added that the assurance rating was limited based on the number and severity of 
risks identified. Of these risks, one was high risk, seven medium, and one low risk. The 
auditor concluded that all recommendations had been agreed by both the team and the 
senior service management team.  
 
The committee asked about the references to the councils’ property database and what 
appeared to be gaps of information on it. The response was that there were some 
omissions in the records. It was added however that the system had been inherited from 
the Five Councils’ Partnership, but they were upgrading the system for South Oxfordshire 
and the Vale of White Horse District Councils. 
 
Another question was asked on the status of the vacant property manager post which was 
described as likely to be filled in May 2022. The head of development and corporate 
landlord responded that they were in the process of recruiting for the role with interviews 
having taken place in the previous week. The officer confirmed that an offer had been 
made but they needed to wait for paperwork to be completed before announcing the 
appointee, although they were optimistic the appointed individual could start in the next 
four weeks.  
 
Another question was posed on there being no risk given for car parking or enforcement. 
The response from the internal audit manager was that a car parking and enforcement 
review was performed in quarter three and a satisfactory assurance rating was given. A 
further question was raised on whether they considered the records on property and 
assets to be complete. The head of development and corporate landlord responded that 
they had conducted a strategic property review and the intention was to have the material 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



 4 

items on the council’s geographical information system. The review would collate a clear 
picture and once documented they could look at what to do with assets. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the internal audit activity report – third quarter 2021/22. 
 

111 Internal audit management report - third quarter 2021/22  
 
The internal audit manager introduced the report and explained that several updates had 
been made to the 2021/22 audit plan. The audit plan updates, along with explanations 
were detailed in item nine of the report, which proposed audits to defer, remove, or 
commence in quarter four. The committee asked why the actual time spent on the cash 
office audit was double the budgeted audit hours and the internal audit manager said they 
would provide a written response. In response to an additional question from the 
committee on the decisions to defer or remove audits, the internal audit manager 
explained that they had considered resourcing and appropriateness of audits at this time. 
In addition, these audit topics would be assessed as part of the preparation of the 2022/23 
internal audit plan. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the internal audit management report – third quarter 2021/22. 
 

112 Future provision of external audit services  
 
The head of finance introduced the report and explained that since 2018-19, local 
authorities were able to procure their own audit services and that the current contract with 
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) expired in 2023/24. The officer therefore 
concluded that if the committee sought to continue the arrangements for the next 
appointing period covering 2023/24-2027/28, they would need to request that this decision 
be accepted by council and for the head of finance to opt into the national scheme. 
 
South Oxfordshire District Council RESOLVED: 

1. That Joint Audit and Governance Committee notes the reports and makes any 

recommendations on the proposals contained herein to Cabinet. 

2. That Cabinet recommends to Council to: 

a. Accept Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led 

option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government and 

police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023; and 

b. Authorise the Head of Finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor 

appointments for the provision of external audit services starting with the audit 

of the 2023/24 accounts. 

Vale of White Horse District Council RESOLVED: 
1. That Joint Audit and Governance Committee notes the reports and makes any 

recommendations on the proposals contained herein to Cabinet. 

2. That Cabinet recommends to Council to: 

a. Accept Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led 

option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government and 

police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023; and 

b. Authorise the Head of Finance to opt into the national scheme for auditor 

appointments for the provision of external audit services starting with the audit 

of the 2023/24 accounts. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 5 

 

113 Treasury management strategy - 2022/23  
 
The head of finance introduced the report and explained that the recommended changes 
were discussed with finance portfolio holders. It was noted there was no significant 
changes, and he added the reports had benefited from a new recruit to the team, Donna 
Ross, who had more time to look at the strategies and a new insight into the treasury 
management strategies.  The committee welcomed the report and supported the 
recommendations set out within.   
 
South Oxfordshire District Council RESOLVED: 

1. To approve each of the following key elements of this report, and recommend these 

to Cabinet: 

a.  To approve the treasury management strategy 2022/23 set out in appendix A to 

this report; 

b. To approve the prudential indicators and limits for 2022/23 to 2024/25 as set out 

in, appendix A. 

c. To approve the annual investment strategy 2022/23 set out in appendix A, and 

the lending criteria detailed in table 6. 

 

Vale of White Horse District Council RESOLVED: 
1. To approve each of the following key elements of this report, and recommend these 

to Cabinet: 

a. To approve the treasury management strategy 2022/23 set out in appendix A to 

this report; 

b. To approve the prudential indicators and limits for 2022/23 to 2024/25 as set out 

in, appendix A. 

c. To approve the annual investment strategy 2022/23 set out in appendix A, and 

the lending criteria detailed in table 6. 

 

114 Corporate risk review  
 
The South Oxfordshire cabinet member for corporate services, policy and programmes 
introduced the report on behalf of herself and the Vale cabinet member for corporate 
services and transformation. The cabinet member explained that the risk register was a 
cyclical review and of particular note was that the IT risk was considered the most 
significant risk. The committee were reassured that ongoing work was taking place to 
mitigate cyber risks. The assurance team leader added that the report was a snapshot with 
work ongoing. In addition, the officer explained that there were a number of new risks, 
whilst a number of risks had moved to the service risk registers. 
 
The committee asked whether there had been an increased risk of cyber-attacks recently 
and whether South Oxfordshire or the Vale had experienced any attacks which reflected 
the increased risk this year. The officer answered that they had noticed some increased 
threats and had added measures such as multi-factor authentication to reduce any risks 
through email. They were also working with Capita and with insurance to look at how they 
can satisfy to insurance markets with effective risk mitigation with one method being a new 
training course which would use interactive modules to help raise awareness in staff on 
the potential threats. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



 6 

 
Two further questions were asked on the increased gross risk on council assets and the 
risk from a lack of informed decision making by councillors, with reference to planning 
decisions. The officer answered the first question by explaining that they had considered 
the risk across the UK at the time it was written, which also occurred around the time of 
the attack on Liverpool Hospital, which had raised the risk level and led officers to look at 
additional mitigation measures. For the second question, the officer explained that they did 
not have the information to-hand but would send a response to the committee after the 
meeting had concluded. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the half yearly progress review of the corporate risk registers as 
outlined in the risk management strategy. 
 

115 Annual complaints report - 2020/21  
 
The cabinet member for corporate services, policy and programmes introduced the report. 
The cabinet member explained that the key driver for complaints in the previous two years 
had been related to key changes that had been made during the pandemic. It was noted 
that South Oxfordshire had received a reduction in twenty-four complaints compared to the 
previous year, whilst the Vale of White Horse had received an additional thirteen 
complaints. The cabinet member concluded by explaining that complaints for the period 
April to September 2021 were also included in the report to enable the committee to see 
current performance. 

 
The committee asked no questions to officers or the cabinet member but expressed 
appreciation for the work done by officers and for the new layout of the report which they 
felt enabled them to have a better understanding of performance on complaints. 
 
RESOLVED: to note the annual complaints report – 2020/21. 
 

116 Work programme  
 
The committee were informed that in addition to the items on the work programme, three 
new items would be presented at the meeting on the 29th March 2022 which were the 
following: 

a. Health and safety progress review 

b. Adoption of a revised code of conduct 

c. Statement of accounts 2021/22 outline and the statement of accounting policies 

Additionally, the head of finance added that the statement of accounts were on the work 
programme for the March meeting, however if delays occurred it had been agreed with the 
chair for an extra committee meeting to be added in April. 
The committee asked on whether there had been any update to the business grants item. 
The internal audit manager responded that work was ongoing, and they were aiming to 
provide an update or draft report in March. An additional question was asked on a previous 
decision on open items and where the committee had requested this be deferred and then 
followed-up in subsequent meeting. The internal audit manager responded that they would 
aim to have an update in March for the discussed items. 
 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



 7 

The meeting closed at 7.48 pm 
 
 
 
Chair Date 

 

 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



 

\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\8\3\3\AI00015338\$1ot0jlja.docx 
1 

 

Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee 
 

 
  
Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Richard Spraggett 

Telephone:01235 422499 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422499 

E-mail: richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: all 

AGENDA ITEM or 
REPORT NO 

South Cabinet member responsible: Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 29 March 2022 

Vale Cabinet member responsible: Andrew 

Crawford 

Tel: 01235 772134 

E-mail: Andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

 

Statement of accounts 2021/22 

Recommendation(s) 

a) To note progress on completing the 2021/22 statement of accounts 

(b) To approve the statements of accounting policies as shown in Appendix 1 (South 
Oxfordshire DC) and Appendix 2 (Vale of White Horse DC). 
 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To update councillors on progress being made towards the completion of the 
2021/22 statement of accounts, and to present revised statements of accounting 
policies for approval. 

Strategic Objectives  

2. Managing the finances of the authorities effectively will help to ensure that 
resources are available to deliver their services and meet the councils’ strategic 
objectives.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 6

mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk


 

\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\8\3\3\AI00015338\$1ot0jlja.docx 
2 

 

Background 

3. The statement of accounts for both councils for 2021/22 are required to be 
completed and signed off for audit by the head of finance by 31 July and audited 
accounts are to be approved by this committee for publication by 30 November.  
This report brings to the attention of the committee some of the key issues for this 
year’s closedown. 

4. The statutory deadlines for approving draft accounts, and completion of the 
external audit introduced for the 2017/18 Year End close proved to be extremely 
challenging for both councils and audit firms. Nationally for the 2020/21 Year End 
only nine per cent of councils met the 30 September 2021 deadline.  For the 
2021/22 accounts this deadline has now been extended to 30 November. 

5. The CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
(the Code) changes for 2021/22 are considered minor and there are no accounting 
policies which require amendment as a result of changes in the Code. The 
accounting policies applied in the preparation of the 2020/21 Statement of 
Accounts remain appropriate for the preparation of 2021/22 Statement of 
Accounts.  These are shown in Appendix 1 (South Oxfordshire DC) and Appendix 
2 (Vale of White Horse DC). 

6. CIPFA issued an exceptional consultation on 3 February 2022 on two time limited 
changes to the Code to help alleviate delays to the publication of audited financial 
statements.  These were an adaptation to allow local authorities to pause 
professional valuations for operational property, plant and equipment for a period 
of up to two years, and a delay in the implementation of the new IFRS 16 standard 
for Leases to the 2023/24 Code.  

7. Both councils responded to the consultation, and the response to the consultation 
(which was the same for both councils) is attached at Appendix 3. Until the 
outcome of the consultation is known, we will continue to prepare for the accounts 
on the basis of the 2021/22 Code as it currently stands. Policies will be reviewed 
and amendments proposed, if necessary. 

Preparations for financial year end 

8. The strategic finance department has a challenging timetable in place which aims 
for completion of both councils’ financial statements by 30 June 2022, one month 
ahead of the deadline. This will ensure that the production of financial statements 
will not overlap with the 2023/24 budget setting process which will start in the early 
summer of 2021. 

9. The strategic finance department is now at full establishment. Training has also 
been undertaken during the year on complex areas such as collection fund 
accounting to improve understanding and aid timely completion of the statements.       

10. Most information required for the completion of the statements comes from internal 
sources.  Other key information is required from Capita to prepare the collection 
fund, Oxfordshire County Council for the pension fund valuation data, and from 
councils’ property valuers Lambert Smith Hampton 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



 

\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\8\3\3\AI00015338\$1ot0jlja.docx 
3 

 

Climate and Ecological Impact Implications  

11. There are no direct implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications 

12. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications 

13. Approval of the amended statement of accounts by the committee fulfils the 
requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015. 

Risks 

14. None.       

Other Implications 

15. None 

Conclusion 

16. The 2021/22 final accounts are being prepared in accordance with the statutory 
guidelines with a target completion date of 30 June 2022 for the draft and 30 
November for the audited accounts. 

17. Draft 2021/22 accounting policies are attached and require approval by the 
committee.    

 

  

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Statement of accounting policies 

 
(i) General principles 
 
The statement of accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the 2021/22 financial year 
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2022. The council is required to prepare an annual 
statement of accounts by 31 July 2022 and for the accounts to be prepared in accordance with 
proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local 
Council Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22, supported by International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the statement of accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 
(ii) Accruals of income and expenditure 

 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made 
or received.  In particular: 
 
 revenue from contracts with service receipts, whether for services or the provision of goods, is 

recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in 
accordance with the performance obligations in the contract;  
 

 supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories 
on the balance sheet; 
 

 expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made; 
 

 interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as 
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract; and 
 

 where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.  Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are defined as follows: 
 
 cash and cash equivalents shall include bank overdrafts that are an integral part of the 

council’s cash management; 
 

 cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather 
than for investment purposes; and 
 

 investments that can be liquidated or accessed within 30 days i.e. money market funds, call 
accounts and deposit accounts with a notice period of 30 days or less. 

 
Equity investments are excluded from the definition. Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 2 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 
(iv) Prior period adjustments, changes in accounting policies and estimates and errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the 
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or 
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other 
events and conditions on the council’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a 
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been 
applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
(v) Charges to revenue for non-current assets 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record 
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
 
 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 

 
 revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the revaluation reserve against which the losses can be written off; and 
 

 amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 
The council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue 
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing required.  As at 31 March 2020 this council has no 
borrowing requirement, so this contribution is not required.  Depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses and amortisations are replaced by the contribution in the general fund balance, 
by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 
 
(vi) Employee benefits 
 
Benefits payable during employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.  They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and 
non-monetary benefits for current employees.  They are recognised as an expense for services in 
the year in which employees render service to the council.  An accrual is made for the cost of 
holiday entitlements and additional hours earned by employees but not taken as time off before 
the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year.  The accrual is 
charged to surplus or deficit on the provision of services, but then reversed out through the MiRS 
so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence 
occurs. 
 
Termination benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable either as a result of a decision by the council to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 3 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

accept voluntary redundancy. Such benefits are charged on an accrual basis to relevant service in 
the CIES when the council is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an 
officer or group of officers or to making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
general fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  
In the MiRS, appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for 
the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end. 
 
Post-employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the authority are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered 
by Oxfordshire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement 
lump sums and pensions). 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
 
The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
 
 The liabilities of the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are 

included in the balance sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an 
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, 
etc. and projections of projected earnings for current employees; 
 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the 
yield at the 18 year point on the Merill Lynch AA rated corporate bond yield curve which has 
been chosen to meet the requirements of IAS19 and with consideration of the duration of the 
Council’s liabilities.  This is consistent with the approach used at the last accounting date.   
 

 The assets of Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are included 
in the balance sheet at their fair value: 

 
- Quoted securities - current bid price 

 
- Unquoted securities - professional estimate 
- Unitised securities - current bid price 

 
- Property - market value. 

 
 The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 

 
 Service cost comprising: 

 
- current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this 

year - allocated in the CIES to the services for which the employees worked. 
- Past service cost - the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect 

relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services in the CIES. 

- net interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (NDBL), i.e. net interest for the council – the 
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 4 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

time charged to the CIES – this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure 
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability 
at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit 
liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 

 
 Remeasurements comprising: 

 
- the return on scheme assets – excluding amounts included in the NDBL – charged to the 

pensions reserve as other CIES. 
- actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 

have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions - charged to the pensions reserves as other 
CIES. 

 
 Contributions paid to the Oxfordshire County council pension fund - cash paid as employer’s 

contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 
 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the general fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the 
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In the MiRS this 
means that there are appropriations to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid a the year-end.   The 
negative balance that arises on the pensions reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to 
the general fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows 
rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 
 
Discretionary benefits 
 
The council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member 
of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the 
same policies as are applied to the LGPS. 
 
(vii) Events after the balance sheet date 
 
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the statement of accounts is 
authorised for issue.  Two types of events can be identified: 
 
 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the 

statement of accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and 
 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the statement of 

accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a 
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated 
financial effect. 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the statement of 
accounts. 
 
(viii) Financial instruments 

 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 5 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are 
carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the income and expenditure account for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest 
for the instrument.  The only financial liabilities the council has are trade creditors.   
 
The council currently has no borrowings and has issued no bonds to bond holders. 
 
Financial assets 
 
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects 
the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. There are 
three main classes of financial assets measured at: 
 
 amortised cost; 

 
 Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL); 

 
 Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI). 

 
The council has no investments measured at FVOCI  
 
Financial instruments measured at amortised cost 
 
Financial instruments measure at amortised cost are recognised on the balance sheet when the 
council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 
measured at fair value.  They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits 
to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES for interest receivable are 
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument.  For most of the loans that the council has made, this means that the amount 
presented in the balance sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and 
interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
However, if the council has made loans at less than market rates (soft loans), then a loss is 
recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service) for the present value of the interest that 
will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the 
outstanding principal.  Interest is credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure 
line in the CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the 
voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in 
the balance sheet.  
 
Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the general fund balance is the interest 
receivable for the financial year. However, the loss attributable to a loan of less than £20,000 is 
not material and at the current date the council has no material loans.  
 
Expected credit loss 
 
The council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised costs, 
either on a 12 month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease 
receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) 
held by the council. 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 6 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take 
place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in 
assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, 
losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, 
losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.  

 
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 
 
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 
measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services except where a statutory override applies in 
which case, they will be recognised in an unusable financial instruments reserve. 
 
The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 
 
 instruments with quoted market prices - the market price; 
 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis. 

 
The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 
levels: 
 
Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 
authority can access at the measurement date, 
 
Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset, either directly or indirectly, 
 
Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. 
 
For instruments where the statutory override applies, changes in fair value are balanced by an 
entry in the unusable financial instrument reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the surplus or 
deficit on revaluation of the assets.  The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred 
- these are debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES, along 
with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the unusable financial instrument reserve. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value 
falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the financing and investment 
income and expenditure line in the CIES.  If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value 
of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  
Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition 
cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 
financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES, along with any accumulated 
gains or losses previously recognised in the unusable financial instrument reserve. 
 
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any 
impairment losses). 
 
 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 7 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

(ix) Foreign currency translation 
 
The council makes a number of small purchases in foreign currency.  However, the transaction is 
made at the current prevailing exchange rate, the goods or services are received immediately and, 
therefore, there are no gains or losses as a result of variances in the exchange rate required to be 
recorded. 
 
(x) Government grants and contributions 
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third-party 
contributions and donations, including Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) contributions, are 
recognised as due to the council when there is reasonable assurance that: 
 
 the council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and 

 
 the grants or contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the council are not credited to the CIES until conditions attached to 
the grant or contribution have been satisfied.  Conditions are stipulations that specify that the 
future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or 
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified.  If this is not the case, then 
future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the balance sheet as creditors.  When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution 
is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or taxation 
and non-specific grant income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the CIES. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the general fund balance in 
the MiRS.  Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the 
capital grants unapplied reserve.  When it has been applied, it is posted to the capital adjustment 
account. 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
The council has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure levy (CIL). The levy will be charged 
on new builds (chargeable developments for the authority) with appropriate planning consent. The 
council charges for and collects the levy, which is a planning charge. The income from the levy will 
be used to fund a number of infrastructure projects (these include transport, flood defences and 
schools) to support the development of the area. 
 
CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the commencement 
date of the chargeable development in the CIES in accordance with the accounting policy for 
government grants and contributions set out above. CIL charges will be largely used to fund 
capital expenditure. However, a proportion of the charges may be used to fund revenue 
expenditure.  
 
 
 
 
 
(xi) Intangible assets 
 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 8 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the council. 
 
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically 
feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the 
council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able 
to sell or use the asset.  Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as 
attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research 
expenditure cannot be capitalised). 
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to promote or advertise the council’s goods or services. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.  Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of 
the assets held by the council can be determined by reference to an active market.  In practice, no 
intangible asset held by the council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at 
amortised cost.  The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to 
the relevant service line(s) in the CIES.  An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an 
indication that the asset might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the relevant 
service line(s) in the CIES.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an 
intangible asset is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an 
impact on the general fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the 
general fund balance in the MiRS and posted to the capital adjustment account and (for any sale 
proceeds greater than £10,000) the capital receipts reserve. 
 
(xii) Interests in companies and other entities – jointly controlled operations and jointly 

controlled assets 
 
The council has no material interests in other companies or entities that have the nature of 
subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities and there is therefore no requirement to 
prepare group accounts. 
 
Jointly controlled operations are classified as activities undertaken by the council in conjunction 
with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than 
the establishment of a separate entity.  They are items of property, plant or equipment that are 
jointly controlled by the council and other venturers, with the assets being used to obtain benefits 
for the venturers.  Whilst the council has entered into joint arrangements on the provision of 
services with other councils, none of the assets of those councils can be said to be under joint 
control of the councils. 
 
(xiii) Inventories and long-term contracts 
 
Inventories are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.   
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the CIES with the value of works 
and services received under the contract during the financial year. 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 9 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

(xiv) Investment property 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.  
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 
production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the 
highest and best use value of the asset from the market participants’ perspective.  Investment 
properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the 
year-end.  Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the financing and investment income and 
expenditure line in the CIES.  The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the financing and investment 
income line and result in a gain for the general fund balance. However, revaluation and disposal 
gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the general 
fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the general fund balance in the 
MiRS and posted to the capital adjustment account and (for any sale proceeds greater than 
£10,000) the capital receipts reserve. 
 
(xv) Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the 
lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in 
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of specific assets. 
 
In advance of IFRS 16 Leases, which applies to accounting periods starting after 1 April 2022, an 
impact assessment will be carried out on 2021-22 accounts. 
 
The council as lessee 
 
Finance leases 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the balance sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for 
the obligation to pay the lessor.  Initial direct costs of the council are added to the carrying amount 
of the asset.  Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.  
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 
 
 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment - applied to write 

down the lease liability; and 
 

 A finance charge (debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 
CIES). 

 
Page 22

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 10 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies 
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this 
is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to 
the council at the end of the lease period). 
 
The council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 
losses arising on leased assets.  Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue 
funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  
Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue 
contribution in the general fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital 
adjustment account in the MiRS for the difference between the two. 
 
Operating leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense of the services 
benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.  Charges are made on a straight-
line basis over the life of the lease. 
 
The council as lessor 
 
Finance leases 
 
Where the council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
relevant asset is written out of the balance sheet as a disposal.  At the commencement of the 
lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet (whether property, plant and 
equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES 
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  A gain, representing the council’s net investment in the 
lease, is credited to the same line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease 
(long-term debtor) asset in the balance sheet. 
 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
 
 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down the lease 

debtor (together with any premiums received); and 
 

 Finance income (credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 
CIES). 

 
The gain credited to the CIES on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the general fund 
balance and is posted out of the general fund balance to the capital receipts reserve in the 
movement in reserves statement.  Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be 
settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the general fund 
balance to the deferred capital receipts reserve in the movement in reserves statement.  When the 
future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used 
to write down the lease debtor.  At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the 
capital receipts reserve. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 
therefore appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the 
MiRS. 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 11 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

Operating leases 
 
Where the council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
asset is retained in the balance sheet.  Rental income is a creditor to the other operating 
expenditure line in the CIES.  Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease. 
 
(xvi) Overheads and support services 
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to services in accordance with the 
authority’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.   
 
(xvii) Property, plant and equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used 
during more than one financial year are classified as property, plant and equipment. 
 
Recognition 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the council and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver 
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an 
expense when it is incurred. 
 
Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 
 the purchase price;  
 
 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
 
The council would not capitalise borrowing costs if required to be incurred for assets under 
construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows 
of the council).  In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the 
acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the council. 
 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value.  The difference between fair value and any 
consideration paid is credited to the taxation and non-specific grant income line of the CIES, 
unless the donation has been made conditionally.  Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in 
the donated assets account.  Where gains are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the 
general fund balance to the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 
 
Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement bases: 
 
 Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical cost; 

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 12 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 Surplus assets – fair value, estimated at highest and best use from a market participant’s 
perspective; 
 

 All other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in 
its existing use. 

 
Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of current value. 
 
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 
Assets included in the balance sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure 
that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as 
a minimum every five years.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the revaluation 
reserve to recognise unrealised gains.  Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the CIES where 
they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains); 

 
 where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the decrease in value the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and 
the remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES; 

 
 where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is written 

down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 
 

When assets are formally revalued, the accumulated depreciation and impairment balances are 
written down.  The revaluation reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 
only, the date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated 
into the capital adjustment account. 
 
Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired.   Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of 
the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains);  
 

 Where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the impairment the carrying amount 
of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and the 
remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES; 
 

 Where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is 
written down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 13 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 
 Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 

service line(s) in the CIES, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that 
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 

Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain community assets) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
 
 Buildings and infrastructure assets – straight line allocation over the useful life of the property 

as estimated by the valuer; 
 

 Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – on a straight-line basis, generally over the useful life 
of the asset. 

 
More detail on depreciation rates for asset categories is included in note 5 to the accounts. 
Where an item of property, plant and equipment has major components whose cost is significant 
in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.   
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable 
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the revaluation reserve to the 
capital adjustment account. 
 
Disposals and non-current assets held for sale 
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset held 
for sale.  The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of 
this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value 
less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES.  Gains in 
fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous loss recognised in the surplus or 
deficit on provision of services.  Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified 
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were 
classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have 
been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale and their recoverable amount at the 
date of the decision not to sell.   
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.  
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance 
sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other 
operating expenditure line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains accumulated 
for the asset in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the capital adjustment account. 
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.  
Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 14 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 
appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 
 
(xviii) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the council a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.   
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the CIES when the 
authority has an obligation , and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of 
the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and 
uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the balance 
sheet.  Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it becomes 
less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement 
than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from 
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant 
service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the council settles the 
obligation. 
 
Contingent liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the council.  Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. 
 
Contingent assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 
(xix) Reserves 
 
The council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the general fund balance in 
the movement in reserves statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, 
it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the CIES.  The reserve is then 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 15 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

appropriated back into the general fund balance in the MiRS so that there is no net charge against 
council tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable 
resources for the council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note. 
 
(xx) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the CIES in the year.  Where the council has determined to meet the cost of 
this expenditure from existing capital resources, a transfer in the MiRS from the general fund 
balance to the capital adjustment account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is 
no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
(xxi) Value Added Tax (VAT) 
 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 
(xxii)  Fair Value Measurement 
 
The council measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value at the end of the 
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability at the measurement date.  The fair value measurement assumes that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  
 
a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or  
 
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 
The council uses external valuers to provide a valuation of its assets and liabilities in line with the 
highest and best use definition within the accounting standard. The highest and best use of the 
asset or liability being valued is considered from the perspective of a market participant.  
 
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the council’s fair value measurement of its assets 
and liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 
 
Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
authority can access at the measurement date.  
 
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly.    
 
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
(xxiii) Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (England) 
 
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of 
the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and 
NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the 
Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and 
NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors 

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 16 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax 
and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 

 
Accounting for Council Tax and NDR 
 
The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is the authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine 
the amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the authority’s General Fund. 
Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund 
is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. The Balance Sheet includes the authority’s share of the end of 
year balances in respect of council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for 
doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and appeals. 
 
Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising 
from a past event that payments due under the statutory arrangements will not be made (fixed or 
determinable payments), the asset is written down and a charge made to the collection fund.  The 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the revised future 
cash flows. 
 

 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



 

South Oxfordshire District Council 17 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 73 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

Statement of accounting policies 

 
(i) General principles 
 
The statement of accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the 2021/22 financial year 
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2022. The council is required to prepare an annual 
statement of accounts by 31 July 2021 and for the accounts to be prepared in accordance with 
proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local 
Council Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22, supported by International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the statement of accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 
(ii) Accruals of income and expenditure 

 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made 
or received. In particular: 
 
 revenue from contracts with service receipts, whether for services or the provision of goods, is 

recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in 
accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.  
 

 supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories 
on the balance sheet; 
 

 expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made; 
 

 interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as 
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract; and 
 

 where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.  Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are defined as follows: 
 
 cash and cash equivalents shall include bank overdrafts that are an integral part of the 

council’s cash management; 
 

 cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather 
than for investment purposes; and 
 

 investments that can be liquidated or accessed within 30 days i.e. money market funds, call 
accounts and deposit accounts with a notice period of 30 days or less. 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 74 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 
Equity investments are excluded from the definition. 
 
(iv) Prior period adjustments, changes in accounting policies and estimates and errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the 
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or 
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other 
events and conditions on the council’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a 
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been 
applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
(v) Charges to revenue for non-current assets 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record 
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
 
 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 

 
 revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the revaluation reserve against which the losses can be written off; and 
 

 amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 
The council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue 
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing required.  As at 31 March 2020 this council has no 
borrowing requirement, so this contribution is not required.  Depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses and amortisations are replaced by the contribution in the general fund balance, 
by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 
 
(vi) Employee benefits 
 
Benefits payable during employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.  They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and 
non-monetary benefits for current employees.  They are recognised as an expense for services in 
the year in which employees render service to the council.  An accrual is made for the cost of 
holiday entitlements and additional hours earned by employees but not taken as time off before 
the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year.  The accrual is 
charged to surplus or deficit on the provision of services, but then reversed out through the MiRS 
so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence 
occurs. 
 
 
 
 

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 75 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

Termination benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable either as a result of a decision by the council to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to 
accept voluntary redundancy. Such benefits are charged on an accruals basis to relevant service 
in the CIES when the council is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of 
an officer or group of officers or to making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
general fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  
In the MiRS, appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for 
the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end. 
 
Post -employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the authority are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered 
by Oxfordshire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to members (retirement 
lump sums and pensions). 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
 
The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
 
 The liabilities of the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are 

included in the balance sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an 
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, 
etc. and projections of projected earnings for current employees; 
 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the 
yield at the 18 year point on the Merill Lynch AA rated corporate bond yield curve which has 
been chosen to meet the requirements of IAS19 and with consideration of the duration of the 
Council’s liabilities.  This is consistent with the approach used at the last accounting date.   
 

 The assets of Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are included 
in the balance sheet at their fair value: 

 
- Quoted securities - current bid price 

 
- Unquoted securities - professional estimate 
- Unitised securities - current bid price 

 
- Property - market value. 

 
 The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 

 
 Service cost comprising: 

 
- current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this 

year - allocated in the CIES to the services for which the employees worked. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 76 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

- Past service cost - the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect 
relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services in the CIES. 

 
- net interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (NDBL), i.e. net interest for the council – the 

change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of 
time charged to the CIES – this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure 
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability 
at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit 
liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 

 
 Remeasurements comprising: 

 
- the return on scheme assets – excluding amounts included in the NDBL – charged to the 

pensions reserve as other CIES. 
- actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 

have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions - charged to the pensions reserves as other 
CIES. 

 
 Contributions paid to the Oxfordshire County council pension fund - cash paid as employer’s 

contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 
 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the general fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the 
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In the MiRS this 
means that there are appropriations to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid a the year-end.   The 
negative balance that arises on the pensions reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to 
the general fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows 
rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 
 
Discretionary benefits 
 
The council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member 
of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the 
same policies as are applied to the LGPS. 
 
(vii) Events after the balance sheet date 
 
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the statement of accounts is 
authorised for issue.  Two types of events can be identified: 
 
 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the 

statement of accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and 
 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the statement of 

accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a 
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated 
financial effect. 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the statement of 
accounts. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 77 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 
(viii) Financial instruments 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are 
carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the income and expenditure account for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest 
for the instrument.  The only financial liabilities the council has are trade creditors.   
 
The council currently has no borrowings and has issued no bonds to bond holders. 
 
Financial assets 
 
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that reflects 
the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characteristics. There are 
three main classes of financial assets measured at: 
 
 amortised cost; 

  
 Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL); 

 
 Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI). 

 
The council has no investments measured at FVOCI.  
 
Financial instruments measured at amortised cost 
 
Financial instruments measure at amortised cost are recognised on the balance sheet when the 
council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 
measured at fair value.  They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits 
to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES for interest receivable are 
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 
instrument.  For most of the loans that the council has made, this means that the amount 
presented in the balance sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and 
interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
However, if the council has made loans at less than market rates (soft loans), then a loss is 
recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service) for the present value of the interest that 
will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the 
outstanding principal.  Interest is credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure 
line in the CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the 
voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in 
the balance sheet.  
 
Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the general fund balance is the interest 
receivable for the financial year. However, the loss attributable to a loan of less than £20,000 is 
not material and at the current date the council has no material loans.  
 
Expected credit loss 
 
The council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost, 
either on a 12 month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to lease 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 78 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables (debtors) 
held by the council. 
 

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take 
place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in 
assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, 
losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, 
losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.  

 
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss 
 
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the balance sheet when the 
authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 
measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive in 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services except where a statutory override applies in 
which case they will be recognised in an unusable financial instruments reserve. 
 
The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 
 
 instruments with quoted market prices - the market price; 
 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis. 

 
The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 
levels: 
 
Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 
authority can access at the measurement date, 
 
Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset, either directly or indirectly, 
 
Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. 
 
For instruments where the statutory override applies, changes in fair value are balanced by an 
entry in the unusable reserve financial instrument reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the 
surplus or deficit on revaluation of the assets.  The exception is where impairment losses have 
been incurred - these are debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in 
the CIES, along with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the unusable financial 
instrument reserve. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value 
falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the financing and investment 
income and expenditure line in the CIES.  If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value 
of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  
Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition 
cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 
financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES, along with any accumulated 
gains or losses previously recognised in the unusable financial instruments reserve. 
 

Page 36

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 79 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any 
impairment losses). 
 
(ix) Foreign currency translation 
 
The council makes a number of small purchases in foreign currency.  However the transaction is 
made at the current prevailing exchange rate, the goods or services are received immediately and, 
therefore, there are no gains or losses as a result of variances in the exchange rate required to be 
recorded. 
 
(x) Government grants and contributions 
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations, including Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) contributions, are 
recognised as due to the council when there is reasonable assurance that: 
 
 the council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and 

 
 the grants or contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the council are not credited to the CIES until conditions attached to 
the grant or contribution have been satisfied.  Conditions are stipulations that specify that the 
future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or 
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified.  If this is not the case then 
future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the balance sheet as creditors.  When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution 
is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or taxation 
and non-specific grant income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the CIES. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the general fund balance in 
the MiRS.  Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the 
capital grants unapplied reserve.  When it has been applied, it is posted to the capital adjustment 
account. 
 
Business Improvement Districts 
 
A Business Improvement District (BID) scheme applies to an area within the authority.  The 
scheme is funded by a BID levy paid by non-domestic ratepayers.  The authority acts as the billing 
authority under the scheme, and accounts for income received and expenditure incurred (including 
contributions to the BID project) within the relevant service within the CIES  
 
Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
The council has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure levy (CIL). The levy will be charged 
on new builds (chargeable developments for the authority) with appropriate planning consent. The 
council charges for and collects the levy, which is a planning charge. The income from the levy will 
be used to fund a number of infrastructure projects (these include transport, flood defences and 
schools) to support the development of the area. 
 
CIL is received without outstanding conditions; it is therefore recognised at the commencement 
date of the chargeable development in the CIES in accordance with the accounting policy for 
government grants and contributions set out above. CIL charges will be largely used to fund 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 80 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

capital expenditure. However, a proportion of the charges may be used to fund revenue 
expenditure.  
 
(xi) Intangible assets 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the council. 
 
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically 
feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the 
council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able 
to sell or use the asset.  Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as 
attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research 
expenditure cannot be capitalised). 
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to promote or advertise the council’s goods or services. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.  Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of 
the assets held by the council can be determined by reference to an active market.  In practice, no 
intangible asset held by the council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at 
amortised cost.  The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to 
the relevant service line(s) in the CIES.  An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an 
indication that the asset might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the relevant 
service line(s) in the CIES.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an 
intangible asset is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an 
impact on the general fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the 
general fund balance in the MiRS and posted to the capital adjustment account and (for any sale 
proceeds greater than £10,000) the capital receipts reserve. 
 
(xii) Interests in companies and other entities – jointly controlled operations and jointly 

controlled assets 
 
The council has no material interests in other companies or entities that have the nature of 
subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities and there is therefore no requirement to 
prepare group accounts. 
 
Jointly controlled operations are classified as activities undertaken by the council in conjunction 
with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than 
the establishment of a separate entity.  They are items of property, plant or equipment that are 
jointly controlled by the council and other venturers, with the assets being used to obtain benefits 
for the venturers.  Whilst the council has entered into joint arrangements on the provision of 
services with other councils, none of the assets of those councils can be said to be under joint 
control of the councils. 
 
(xiii) Inventories and long term contracts 
 
Inventories are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.   
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the CIES with the value of works 
and services received under the contract during the financial year. 

Page 38

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 81 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 
(xiv) Investment property 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.  
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 
production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the 
highest and best use value of the asset from the market participants’ perspective.  Investment 
properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the 
year-end.  Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the financing and investment income and 
expenditure line in the CIES.  The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the financing and investment 
income line and result in a gain for the general fund balance. However revaluation and disposal 
gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the general 
fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the general fund balance in the 
MiRS and posted to the capital adjustment account and (for any sale proceeds greater than 
£10,000) the capital receipts reserve. 
 
(xv) Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the 
lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in 
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of specific assets. 
 
The council as lessee 
 
Finance leases 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the balance sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for 
the obligation to pay the lessor.  Initial direct costs of the council are added to the carrying amount 
of the asset.  Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.  
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 
 
 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment - applied to write 

down the lease liability; and 
 

 A finance charge (debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 
CIES). 

 
Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies 
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 82 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to 
the council at the end of the lease period). 
 
The council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 
losses arising on leased assets.  Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue 
funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  
Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue 
contribution in the general fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital 
adjustment account in the MiRS for the difference between the two. 
 
Operating leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense of the services 
benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.  Charges are made on a straight-
line basis over the life of the lease. 
 
The council as lessor 
 
Finance leases 
 
Where the council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
relevant asset is written out of the balance sheet as a disposal.  At the commencement of the 
lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet (whether property, plant and 
equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES 
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  A gain, representing the council’s net investment in the 
lease, is credited to the same line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease 
(long-term debtor) asset in the balance sheet. 
 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
 
 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down the lease 

debtor (together with any premiums received); and 
 

 Finance income (credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 
CIES). 

 
The gain credited to the CIES on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the general fund 
balance and is posted out of the general fund balance to the capital receipts reserve in the 
movement in reserves statement.  Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be 
settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the general fund 
balance to the deferred capital receipts reserve in the movement in reserves statement.  When the 
future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used 
to write down the lease debtor.  At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the 
capital receipts reserve. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 
therefore appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the 
MiRS. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 40

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 83 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

Operating leases 
 
Where the council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
asset is retained in the balance sheet.  Rental income is a creditor to the other operating 
expenditure line in the CIES.  Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease. 
 
(xvi) Overheads and support services 
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to services in accordance with the 
authority’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.   
 
(xvii) Property, plant and equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used 
during more than one financial year are classified as property, plant and equipment. 
 
Recognition 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the council and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver 
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an 
expense when it is incurred. 
 
Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 
 the purchase price;  
 
 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
 
The council would not capitalise borrowing costs if required to be incurred for assets under 
construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows 
of the council).  In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the 
acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the council. 
 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value.  The difference between fair value and any 
consideration paid is credited to the taxation and non-specific grant income line of the CIES, 
unless the donation has been made conditionally.  Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in 
the donated assets account.  Where gains are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the 
general fund balance to the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 
 
Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement bases: 
 
 Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical cost; 

 
 Surplus assets – fair value, estimated at highest and best use from a market participant’s 

perspective; 
Page 41

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 84 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 
 All other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in 

its existing use. 
 
Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of current value. 
 
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 
Assets included in the balance sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure 
that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as 
a minimum every five years.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the revaluation 
reserve to recognise unrealised gains.  Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the CIES where 
they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains); 

 
 where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the decrease in value the carrying 

amount of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and 
the remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES; 

 
 where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is written 

down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 
 

When assets are formally revalued, the accumulated depreciation and impairment balances are 
written down.  The revaluation reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 
only, the date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated 
into the capital adjustment account. 
 
Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired.   Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of 
the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains);  
 

 Where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the impairment the carrying amount 
of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and the 
remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES; 
 

 Where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is 
written down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 
 

Page 42

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 85 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the CIES, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that 
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 

Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain community assets) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
 
 Buildings and infrastructure assets – straight line allocation over the useful life of the property 

as estimated by the valuer; 
 

 Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – on a straight line basis, generally over the useful life 
of the asset. 

 
More detail on depreciation rates for asset categories is included in note 5 to the accounts. 
Where an item of property, plant and equipment has major components whose cost is significant 
in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.   
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable 
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the revaluation reserve to the 
capital adjustment account. 
 
Disposals and non-current assets held for sale 
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset held 
for sale.  The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of 
this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value 
less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES.  Gains in 
fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous loss recognised in the surplus or 
deficit on provision of services.  Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified 
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were 
classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have 
been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale and their recoverable amount at the 
date of the decision not to sell.   
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.  
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance 
sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other 
operating expenditure line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains accumulated 
for the asset in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the capital adjustment account. 
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.  
Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 86 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 
appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 
 
(xviii) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the council a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.   
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the CIES when the 
authority has an obligation and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the balance 
sheet.  Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it becomes 
less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement 
than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from 
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant 
service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the council settles the 
obligation. 
 
Contingent liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the council.  Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. 
 
Contingent assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 
 
 (xix) Reserves 
 
The council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the general fund balance in 
the movement in reserves statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, 
it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the CIES.  The reserve is then 
appropriated back into the general fund balance in the MiRS so that there is no net charge against 
council tax for the expenditure. 

Page 44

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 87 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable 
resources for the council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note. 
 
(xx) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the CIES in the year.  Where the council has determined to meet the cost of 
this expenditure from existing capital resources, a transfer in the MiRS from the general fund 
balance to the capital adjustment account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is 
no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
(xxi) Value Added Tax (VAT) 
 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 
(xxii)  Fair Value Measurement 
 
The council measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value at the end of the 
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability at the measurement date.  The fair value measurement assumes that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  
 
a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or  
 
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 
The council uses external valuers to provide a valuation of its assets and liabilities in line with the 
highest and best use definition within the accounting standard. The highest and best use of the 
asset or liability being valued is considered from the perspective of a market participant.  
 
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the council’s fair value measurement of its assets 
and liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 
 
Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
authority can access at the measurement date.  
 
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly.    
 
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
(xxiii) Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (England) 
 
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf of 
the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting council tax and 
NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (i.e. the 
Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and 
NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors 
and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



Vale of White Horse District Council 88 Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 

 
Accounting for Council Tax and NDR 
 
The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is the authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine 
the amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the authority’s General Fund. 
Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund 
is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. The Balance Sheet includes the authority’s share of the end of 
year balances in respect of council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for 
doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments and appeals. 
 
Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising 
from a past event that payments due under the statutory arrangements will not be made (fixed or 
determinable payments), the asset is written down and a charge made to the collection fund.  The 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the revised future 
cash flows. 
 

Page 46

Agenda Item 6



Appendix 3 Response to CIPFA Emergency Proposals 
 
 

Hello 
 
As Section 151 Officer for 2 councils -Vale of White District Council and South 
Oxfordshire District Council - I would like to comment on the emergency proposals 
for an update of the 2021/22 Code of practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom and the 2022/23 Code as follows. 
 
Q1a Do you agree with the proposal that preparers should have the option to 
pause professional revaluation? If not, why not? Please provide reasons for 
your view.  
 
I see no particular benefit in this proposal and anticipate that, if introduced as 
optional, then we would not utilise the proposal.  The use of professional valuers and 
accounting for the figures they suggest has not historically created a problem for the 
two councils.  Work on this year’s valuations has already been commissioned with 
reports expected back imminently.  Responses to audit queries from our valuers can 
take one of two days but rarely longer than a week consequently and, under normal 
circumstances, we don’t consider this a problem area.  
 
Noting that this would be a temporary pause, there is perhaps a wider question of 
the value gained in the current accounting processes for fixed assets given the 
amount of effort and expense that is required in accounting and auditing them.   
 
Q1b Additionally, do you agree with the proposal that preparers should have 
the option to pause professional revaluation and adopt an indexation 
approach to 2021/22? If not, why not? Please provide reasons for your view. 
 
We would not choose to move to an indexation approach given that we have already 
commissioned this year’s valuations and given that such a proposal would only be 
temporary in nature.   
 
Where councils would opt to pause professional revaluation officers would have to 
justify their choice of index.  This is not an area finance staff are skilled in and they 
may still have to consult valuers, creating little saving in time or cost.  The use of 
indices rather than professional valuations will further add to audit uncertainty and 
potentially delay not reduce audit time and decision making    
 
Q2 Do you have any comments on the impact of the adoption of this approach 
on preparers or auditors? If so, please provide more information.  
 
No further comments however the views of the auditors will be critical in determining 
the approach to be adopted. 
 
Q3 If you support this approach, do you consider that the approach should be 
available to all local authorities, restricted to England, or determined on a 
jurisdiction basis reflecting the view of the relevant government?  
 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



We have no comments on this question. 
 
Q4 If you support this approach in principle, do you consider that it is 
appropriate for all operational property plant and equipment, including for 
example, Housing Revenue Account assets? 
 
Issues in this area would appear to be around assets that require professional 
valuation so a consistent approach to those assets would be appropriate. 
 
Q5 Do you have any other comments on the proposal? 
 
No 
    
Q6 Do you support the further deferral of IFRS 16 implementation to reduce 
auditor/preparer workload? If not, why not?  
 
Yes I support the proposed deferral of IFRS 16 implementation. The implementation 
of IFRS 16 represents an additional burden at a time when both councils and audit 
firms are finding the current timetable difficult to achieve for a number of reasons, 
including the pandemic. A further year delay will enable councils to be fully prepared 
for IFRS 16, not least because lessons can be learned from other sectors who 
implement in 2022 and potentially other councils who may choose to implement 
early.  In the same way audit firms from their work on other clients will have a clearer 
view on how they will approach the audit of IFRS 16 implementation which in turn will 
result in an easier 2023 audit.           
 
Q7 Do you have any comments on the practical impact of the adoption of this 
approach? Please provide details to support your view.  
 
There are no practical implications to delaying IFRS 16 implementation. Reverting 
back to the method of accounting used in previous years for leases creates no extra 
work and preparation for IFRS 16 will continue ‘in the background’    
 
Q8 Do you have any comments on the jurisdictional application of this 
approach?  
 
No 
 
Q9 Do you have any other comments on the proposal? 
 
No 
 

Page 48

Agenda Item 6



Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 
Report of Internal Audit Manager 

Author: Victoria Dorman-Smith 

Telephone: 01235 422430 

E-mail: victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 29 March 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Internal audit activity report quarter four 

2021/22  

 

Recommendations 
 
(a)  That members note the content of the report 
 

 
Purpose of report  
 
1. The purpose of this report is to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit activity 

at both councils for the committee to consider.  The committee is asked to review the 
report and the main issues arising and seek assurance that action will be/has been taken 
where necessary.  

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Dorman-Smith, Internal Audit Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council 
(VWHDC), email victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk. 

Strategic objectives 
  
3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting their 

strategic objectives. 
 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk


Background  
 
4. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 

opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievements of the council’s objectives.  It assists the councils by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work, and recommending improvements where necessary.  After each 
audit assignment, internal audit has a duty to report to management its findings on the 
control environment and risk exposure, and recommend changes for improvements 
where applicable.  Managers are responsible for considering audit reports and taking the 
appropriate action to address control weaknesses.  

 
5. Assurance ratings given by internal audit indicate the following: 

Full assurance: There is a good system of internal control designed to meet the system 
objectives and the controls are being consistently applied.  
 
Substantial assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to meet 
the system objectives and the controls are being applied. 
 
Satisfactory assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal control although 
there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence that the level of non-
compliance may put some minor system objectives at risk. 
 
Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal control 
system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of non-compliance puts 
some of the system objectives at risk. 
 
Nil assurance: Control is weak leaving the system open to significant error or abuse 
and/or there is significant non-compliance with basic controls. 
 

6. Each recommendation is given one of the following risk ratings: 

High Risk: Fundamental control weakness for senior management action 

Medium Risk: Other control weakness for local management action 

Low Risk: Recommended best practice to improve overall control 

 
Completed audit reports 
 
7. As at 18 March 2022, since the last joint audit and governance committee meeting the 

following audits and follow up reviews have been completed: 
 

Completed Audits: 2 
Full Assurance: 2 
Substantial Assurance: 0 
Satisfactory Assurance: 2 
Limited Assurance: 0 
Nil Assurance: 0 

 

Page 50

Agenda Item 7



Audit Area 
Assurance 
Rating T

o
ta

l 
R

e
c

s
 

H
ig

h
 R

is
k

  

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

M
e

d
iu

m
 R

is
k
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

L
o

w
 R

is
k
 

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 

Joint 

Joint General Ledger 21/22 Satisfactory 4 0 0 2 2 2 2 

Joint Contract Management 
21/22 

Satisfactory 9 0 0 4 4 5 5 

SODC  

None         

VWHDC 

None         

 
8. Joint Covid-19 Grants 2021/22: the audit of discretionary, business and councillor 

grants commenced in January 2022 and good progress has been made. The review 
focused on the areas of compliance to government guidance, fraud checks, appeals and 
complaints handling, accounting, and performance. The following grant schemes were 
included in the audit:  
a) Discretionary Grants:  

i. Local Authority Discretionary Grant Fund (LADGF): 
ii. Additional Restrictions Grant Fund (ARG) Rounds 1&2, including top-up 

payments; and  
iii. Local Restrictions Support Grant (LRSG) 

b) Mandatory Business Grants:  
i. Small Business Grant Fund (SBGF); and 
ii. Retail, Hospitality & Leisure Grant Fund (RHLGF) 

c) Covid-19 Councillor Grants (£2k)  
Work is being concluded in the areas of accounting and performance, and preliminary 
observations and recommendations will then be shared with auditees, service managers, 
and heads of service for their management responses.  It is anticipated that the report 
will be finalised in April 2022. 
 
Follow Up Reviews 

Audit Area 

Initial 
Assurance 
Given N

o
. 

o
f 

R
e

c
s
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

N
o

t 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

N
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
li
c

a
b

le
 

Joint 

Joint Payroll 20/21 Limited 14 7 5 2 0 

SODC 

None       

VWHDC 

None       

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



9. Appendix 1 of this report sets out the key points and findings relating to the completed 
audits which have received limited or nil assurance, and satisfactory or full assurance 
reports which members have asked to be presented to committee.  

 
10. Members of the committee are asked to seek assurance from the internal audit reports 

and/or respective managers that the agreed actions have been or will be undertaken 
where necessary.   

 
11. A copy of each report has been sent to the appropriate service manager, the section 151 

officer and the relevant member portfolio holder.  In addition, reports are now published 
on the councils’ intranet and limited assurance reports are reviewed by the strategic 
management team. 

12. Internal audit continues to carry out a six month follow up on all non-key financial audits 
to establish the implementation status of agreed recommendations.   All key financial 
system recommendations are followed up as part of the annual assurance cycle. 

 
Climate and ecological impact implications 
 
13. There are no direct climate or ecological implications arising from this report. 
 
Financial implications 
 
14. There are no financial implications attached to this report. 
 
Legal implications 
 
15. None. 
 
Risks 
 
16. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits. 

 
 

VICTORIA DORMAN-SMITH 
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52

Agenda Item 7



Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 
Report of Internal Audit Manager 

Author: Victoria Dorman-Smith 

Telephone: 01235 422430 

E-mail: victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 29 March 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

Internal audit management report 

quarter four 2021/22 

  

Recommendation(s) 
 

(a) That members note the content of the report. 
 

 

Purpose of report 

1. The purpose of this report is: 

 to report on management issues within internal audit; 

 to summarise the progress against the 2021/22 audit plan up to 18 
March 2022; and 

 to summarise the priorities for quarter one 2022/23. 

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Dorman-Smith, Internal Audit 
Manager for South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White 
Horse District Council (VWHDC), telephone 07766 780835, email 
victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk


Strategic objectives 
 
3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in 

meeting their strategic objectives. 
 
Background  
 
4. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), effective from 1 April 2017, 

state that the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit plan, 
which should outline the assignments to be carried out and the resource 
requirements to deliver the plan, for audit committee approval. The Joint Audit 
and Governance Committee approved the 2021/22 annual internal audit plan 
on 30 March 2021.  

 
5. The PSIAS also states that the head of internal audit must periodically report on 

performance relative to the plan.   
 
Progress against the 2021/22 audit plan 

 
6. Progress against the approved audit plan for 2021/22 has been calculated for 

the quarter and year to date and is summarised in appendix 1 attached.   
 
7. Performance figures to date are as follows: 
 

 

Target YTD 

Actuals by Quarter 

Q1 
21/22 

Q2 
21/22 

Q3 
21/22 

Q4 
21/22 

Chargeable 
(identifiable client and/or specific 
IA deliverable) 

76% 55% 54% 58% 56% 69% 

Non-Chargeable  
(corporate, not IA deliverable) 

7% 21% 20.5% 22% 20% 22% 

Planned Lost 
(i.e. leave) 

14.5% 19% 21.5% 12% 22% 5% 

Unplanned Lost 
(i.e. study, sickness) 

2.5% 5% 4% 8% 2% 4% 

 
8. As of 18 March 2022, the status of audit work against the 2021/22 audit plan is 

as follows: 
 
Planned  
Strategic, operational and financial assurance and consultancy work known and 
approved by the joint audit and governance committee.   
 

 

2021/22 Planned 

Not 
Performed 
(Removed) Deferred In progress 

Completed 
or  

Draft Out 

Total 34 7 6 8 13 

Joint 32 5 6 8 13 

SODC 1 1 0 0 0 

VWHDC 1 1 0 0 0 

 
 

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



Ad-hoc 
Unplanned project work based on agreed terms of reference with the audit manager 
(i.e., implementation of new systems) and responsive work issued and agreed by 
the section 151 officer, members or senior management team (i.e., investigations). 

 

 

2021/22 Requested Complete Draft 
In 

progress 
To 

commence 

Ad-hoc 0 0 0 0 0 

Joint 0 0 0 0 0 

SODC 0 0 0 0 0 

VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Follow up  
Work undertaken to ensure that agreed recommendations have been implemented.  
The number of follow-up audits is a rolling number, all internal audit reports are 
followed up after six months unless the area is subject to an annual review. 

 

 
2021/22 Requested Complete Draft 

In 
progress 

To 
commence 

Q1 22/23 

Follow up 0 6 0 1 4 

Joint 0 5 0 1 4 

SODC 0 0 0 0 0 

VWHDC 0 1 0 0 0 

 
9. The priorities for quarter one are to: 

 Finalise the remaining 2021/22 audit work, in line with the audit plan: 

 Prepare the annual audit report for 2021/22; and 

 Start the planned audit work for 2022/23, per the approved audit plan. 
 
10. The schedule for remaining 2021/22 planned audit work can be reviewed in 

appendix 2.  
 
Climate and ecological impact implications 
 
11. There are no direct climate or ecological implications arising from this report. 
 
Financial implications 
 
12. There are no financial implications attached to this report. 
 
Legal implications 
 
13. None. 
 
Risk implications 
 
14. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits. 
 

VICTORIA DORMAN-SMITH 
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



PROGRESS AGAINST PLANNED AUDITS 2021/2022

Audit Area

As at 18 March 2022

Capital Management & Accounting (16)

SODC 7.5 6.5

VWHDC 7.5 6.5

Council Tax (20)

SODC 10.0 8.5

VWHDC 10.0 7.5

Creditor Payments (20)

SODC 10.0 10.0 7 0 0 2 2 5 5 0

VWHDC 10.0 10.0 7 0 0 2 2 5 5 0

General Ledger (19)

SODC 5.0 5.5 4 0 0 2 2 2 2 0

VWHDC 5.0 5.0 4 0 0 2 2 2 2 0

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction Scheme (20)

SODC 10.0 0.5

VWHDC 10.0 0.5

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) (22)

SODC 7.5 8.0

VWHDC 7.5 8.0

Payroll (22)

SODC 15.0 0.0

VWHDC 15.0 0.0

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review (19)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Sundry Debtors (19)

SODC 10.0 15.0 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 2

VWHDC 10.0 15.0 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 2

Treasury Management (18)

SODC 10.0 4.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1

VWHDC 10.0 4.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 1

Garden Waste (16)

SODC 7.5 3.0

VWHDC 7.5 3.0

Car Parking & Enforcement (12)

SODC 5.0 8.0 13 0 0 6 6 7 7 0

VWHDC 5.0 8.0 13 0 0 6 6 7 7 0

Cash Office (14)

SODC 7.5 16.0 3 1 1 0 0 2 2 0

VWHDC 7.5 16.0 3 1 1 0 0 2 2 0

Contract Management (19)

SODC 10.0 15.0 9 0 0 4 4 5 5 0

VWHDC 10.0 14.5 9 0 0 4 4 5 5 0

Council Fees and Charges (16)

SODC 10.0 11.0 6 0 0 4 4 2 2 0

VWHDC 10.0 10.0 6 0 0 4 4 2 2 0

Covid-19 Grants (N/A)

SODC 10.0 9.0

VWHDC 10.0 9.0

Estates & Facitities Management (17)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Information Governance (incl. FOI, EIR) (11)

SODC 10.0 1.0

VWHDC 10.0 1.0

IT Operations (20)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Land Charges (11)

SODC 10.0 8.5 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

VWHDC 10.0 8.5 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

Learning & Development (N/A)

SODC 10.0 9.0

VWHDC 10.0 9.0

Planning Appeals (11)

SODC 10.0 9.0 7 0 0 3 3 4 4 7

VWHDC 10.0 9.0 7 0 0 3 3 4 4 7

Planning Applications (11)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Planning Enforcement (15)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Procurement (19)

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Property Management (17)

SODC 10.0 13.0 9 1 1 7 7 1 1 0

VWHDC 10.0 13.0 9 1 1 7 7 1 1 0

Receipt & Collection of Income (15)

SODC 7.5 0.0

VWHDC 7.5 0.0

Section 106/CIL (15)

SODC 5.0 1.0

VWHDC 5.0 1.0

Whistleblowing & Fraud (N/A)

SODC 5.0 0.0

VWHDC 5.0 0.0

Cornerstone

SODC 7.0 0.0

Corporate Landlord Approach

SODC 10.0 0.0

VWHDC 10.0 0.0

Didcot Community Facilities

SODC 5.0 0.0

VWHDC 5.0 0.0

Disposal of Assets & Property

SODC 5.0 0.0

VWHDC 5.0 0.0

The Beacon

VWHDC 7.0 0.0

JOINT PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 34 579.0 321.0

Completed 11 Full

Draft Out 2 Substantial

In Progress 8 Satisfactory

To Commence 0 Limited

Deferred 6 Nil

Not Performed (Removed) 7

34 0

Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no  value 

to be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

PLANNED ASSURANCE AUDITS

PLANNED CONSULTANCY AUDITS

Draft Out

Completed

Full

Not Performed

Completed

Deferred New procurement strategy in place – audit in 22/23 to review progress. 

Payroll not audited in 21/22, due to the previous audit being reported in 

July 2021. However, a follow up of the previous audit recommendations 

will be performed in Q4 and the next payroll audit will be scheduled for Q1 

of 22/23. Payroll is replaced by Learning and Development.

Review of fraud risks considered in every audit now – new scoping 

template to support this. Separate audit not required.

No specific areas of concern and last audited in 17/18.

Deferred Significant work on IT strategy currently in progress, defer audit to a later 

date, once finalised.

In Progress

In Progress

Completed

Completed

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

In Progress Replaces Payroll 21/22 audit.

Not Performed Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no value to 

be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

Deferred Recent Council paper considered planning enforcement, therefore audit 

deferred.

Limited

In Progress Review of income collection.

Not Performed

Audit not required, no areas of concern or high risk.

Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no value to 

be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

Replaced by a Cash Office audit, which is already completed.

In Progress Disposal’s strategy newly implemented (Sep-21). Limited review of policy 

contents and any disposals since adoption of new policy.

Not Performed Work is either underway or under consideration in this area, so no value to 

be gained at this stage from a consultancy review.

APPENDIX 1

T
o

ta
l 

N
o

t 

A
g

re
e
d

H
ig

h

Satisfactory

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

KEY FINANCIAL AUDITS

M
e
d

iu
m

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

Status

N
o

. 
o

f 
R

e
c
s

Audit Opinion

Deferred

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Audit initially started in June 2021 and will recommence in Q4; however, 

the audit scope will be revisited to address current risks. 

Completed

In Progress

Completed Cash office replaces the Receipt & Collection of Income audit.

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Completed

5844

16

4

0

128

2

0

Not Performed

Completed

In Progress

20666658

This area is moving under Corporate Landlord model, which is a work in 

progress. No added value from an internal audit in 2021/22.

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

A review of Covid-19 business, discretionary and councillor grants was 

taken out of the 2020/21 Covid-19 response audit and is performed 

separately in 2021/22..

L
o

w

Completed

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

A
u

d
it

 

A
ll

o
c
a
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 

D
a
y
s
 

U
s
e
d

Exception Issues

Draft Out

Deferred

Full

Satisfactory

Full

Not Performed

Full

Completed

Limited

Completed

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

In Progress

Not Performed

Deferred Review of the development management process currently being 

commissioned. No added value from an internal audit. 

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



AUDIT PLAN SCHEDULE 2021/22 (As at 18 March 2022)
Key:

Projected Start Date

In Progress

Draft Out

Completed

Not Performed/Revised Arrangements

PLANNED AUDITS

4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 5

Council Tax (20)

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction Scheme (20)

Covid-19 Grants (N/A)

Garden Waste (16)

Information Governance (11)

Learning & Development (N/A)

Section 106/CIL (15)

Contract Management (19)

Creditor Payments (20)

Car Parking & Enforcement (12)

Cash Office (14)

Council Fees and Charges (16)

General Ledger (19)

Land Charges (11)

Planning Appeals (11)

Property Management (17)

Sundry Debtors (19)

Treasury Management (18)

Capital Management & Accounting (16)

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) (22)

Payroll (22)

Pro-Active Anti-Fraud Review (19)

Estates & Facitities Management (17)

IT Operations (20)

Planning Applications (11)

Planning Enforcement (15)

Receipt & Collection of Income (15)

Whistleblowing & Fraud (N/A)

2021/22 JOINT CONSULTANCY AUDITS

Corporate Landlord Approach

Didcot Community Facilities

Disposal of Assets & Property

2021/22 SODC CONSULTANCY AUDITS

Cornerstone

2021/22 VWHDC CONSULTANCY AUDITS

The Beacon

2021/22 JOINT ASSURANCE AUDITS

APPENDIX 2

JuneApril MayMarch

J
A

G
C

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 8



Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee  

 
Report of Internal Audit Manager 

Author: Victoria Dorman-Smith 

Telephone: 01235 422430 

E-mail: victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andy Crawford 

Telephone: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 29 March 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Internal audit plan 2022/2023 

 

Recommendation(s) 
 
(a) That members approve the internal audit plan 2022/23 
 

 
Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is: 

 to explain the process for setting the internal audit plan and for calculating 
the resources available; and 

 to set out the proposed internal audit plan for 2022/23. 
 

2. The contact officer for this report is Victoria Dorman-Smith, Internal Audit Manager 
for South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District 
Council (VWHDC), email victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk. 

 
Strategic Objectives 
 
3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting 

their strategic objectives. 
 
 
 Page 58

Agenda Item 9

mailto:victoria.hughes@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:victoria.dorman-smith@southandvale.gov.uk


Background  
 
4. The definition of internal audit is set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS): “Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and 
consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s 
operations.  It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance processes.  It may also undertake 
consulting services at the request of the councils, subject to there being no impact 
on the core assurance work and the availability of skills and resources. 

 
5. Internal audit supports the head of finance (section 151 officer) in discharging 

his/her statutory duties, particularly in relation to the following legislation: 

 The Local Government Act 1972 states that the section 151 officer is 
responsible for ensuring that there are arrangements in place for the proper 
administration of the authority’s financial affairs.   

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations state that ‘A relevant body must 
maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of the control 
environment and systems of internal control’. 
 

6. The PSIAS states that the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based 
internal audit plan, and for plans to receive input from management.  It also states 
that the plan should outline the assignments to be carried out and the resource 
requirements to deliver the plan.  The PSIAS also states that the audit committee 
should approve the internal audit plan and monitor progress against the plan.  This 
document sets out the proposed internal audit plan for 2022/23, together with 
potential audit reviews in 2023/24 and 2024/25. 

 
The Audit Planning Process 
 
7. The PSIAS refer to the need for the risk-based plan to consider the requirement to 

produce an annual internal audit opinion and report that is used by the 
organisation to inform its governance statement.  The annual internal audit opinion 
must conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control.   
 

8. To support this, the risk-based plan needs to consider the risk priorities per the 
SODC and VWHDC corporate risk registers, review of large or significant income 
and budget spend and review of the corporate priorities and objectives. 
 

9. The approach to the audit planning process was agreed by the head of finance.  
The following steps were undertaken: 

Step 1: The SODC and VWHDC corporate risk registers have been reviewed 
as the starting point for the audit planning process as this represents 
management’s assessment of the risks to the councils achieving their 
strategic objectives.  Checks have been performed to ensure that the 
top eight risks on the SODC corporate risk register and the top seven 
risks on the VWHDC corporate risk register are reviewed regularly by 
internal audit. 

Step 2: Areas of large or significant income and budget spend across each 
service area have been reviewed to ensure that they are included as a 
possible audit area in the SAA. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



Step 3: The SAA is attached in appendix 1 and lists every possible audit area 
at both or either SODC or VWHDC.  The audit areas have been 
reviewed and updated to reflect the current organisational structure 
and division of responsibilities across each service area.  Each audit 
has been rated by the internal audit manager and critically reviewed 
by the head of finance on several risk factors to give an overall risk 
score, and this assists in the assessment of what should be placed in 
the annual internal audit plan.  Although scoring is subjective, and no 
two people would score alike the process attempts to introduce a 
degree of objectivity into the assessment process.   

Step 4: Meetings have been held between the internal audit manager and 
deputy chief executives and heads of service in February 2022 to 
obtain insights into the level of risk exposure within each service area 
across both councils.  In addition, heads of service have requested 
that, where required, specific function(s) within their service area are 
reviewed as part of the planned assurance or consultancy work for 
2022/23 or future years. 

Step 5: The proposed internal audit plan for 2022/23 has been finalised with 
the head of finance and shared with the senior management team for 
their information on 9th March 2022. 

 
10. Due to the changing environment that exists in Local Government, there is a need 

for an element of flexibility in the internal audit plan due to potential changes in the 
council risk profiles and the potential for emerging risks.  The SAA and corporate 
risk registers will be reviewed regularly by the internal audit manager throughout 
the year, and it is possible that changes to the internal audit plan may be required. 
Any changes (e.g. due to changes to the council risk profiles or due to 
management requests) will be agreed with the head of finance and reported to the 
audit committee.  In September 2022, meetings will be held between the internal 
audit manager and deputy chief executives and heads of service to understand if 
there have been any changes to the level of risk exposure within each service 
area across both councils, since the initial discussions in February 2022.  Based 
on the outcome of these meetings, the internal audit manager will assess whether 
audits need to be added, removed or amended on the internal audit plan. 
 

Allocation of Audit Resources 
 
11. The resources available to deliver the internal audit annual plan 2022/23 are 

arrived at by starting with the number of days available for all internal audit posts 
within the team.  This is then reduced by the estimated numbers of days lost 
through annual leave, bank holidays (planned) and sickness and other absences 
(unplanned).  The remaining days available are then allocated between the 
various elements of work which are expected to be carried out in the year to 
deliver an effective internal audit service.   

 
12. The calculation of days available and the allocation of days between different 

categories of work is attached as appendix 2.  The different categories of work 
are classed as either chargeable or non-chargeable.  Chargeable means the work 
has an identifiable client or is directly linked to the delivery of internal audit 
services.  Non-chargeable means any other work which is not directly linked to the 
delivery of internal audit services (for example: admin, corporate responsibilities, 
training, staff briefings). 

 

Page 60

Agenda Item 9



13. An explanation of the individual variances against the previous year allocation is 
provided in appendix 2. 

 
Internal Audit Plan  

 
14. The outputs from the audit planning and allocation of resources process have 

been prioritised to produce an internal audit plan that considers the following:  

 the requirement to give an objective and evidenced based opinion on 
aspects of governance, risk management and internal control. 

 the requirement for internal audit to add value through improving controls, 
streamlining processes and supporting corporate priorities. 

 the need to allocate a suitable number of contingency days to respond to 
emerging risk, governance and control matters. 

 the need to allocate a suitable number of investigation days for fraud or 
whistleblowing purposes. 

 to support the head of finance’s requirement for a cyclical review of key 
financial systems and processes throughout the councils.  
 

15. The internal audit plan for 2022/23 is designed and constructed in such a way to 
enable the internal audit manager to form an opinion on the adequacy of each 
council’s control environment, taking into consideration available audit resources.  
This opinion forms an important independent view of each council’s operations 
that feeds into and supports each council’s annual governance statement.   
 

16. The proposed internal audit plan for 2022/23 is attached in appendix 3 and has 
been agreed with the head of finance and has been considered by the senior 
management team (SMT).   
 

Individual Audits 
 
17. For each audit, not all aspects within a specific area are necessarily examined.  

Actual audit coverage is decided at the time of the audit in consultation with key 
management and officers.  This ensures that current issues together with recent 
coverage by internal audit or external bodies determine the scope of the work. 
 

18. An estimated start date for each audit is included in the internal audit plan in 
appendix 3, which aims to ensure the availability of key management and 
officers.  We will. however, seek to agree a date which is convenient to the officers 
involved during the scoping of each review. 
 

19. Upon completion of the audit fieldwork, the auditor will draft a report and arrange 
to meet with the auditees, to ensure factual accuracy of the audit observations and 
findings and to ensure a proper understanding of the risks to which any action 
plan relates. 

 
20. A formal audit report will be issued for all planned assurance audit work, which will 

provide an overall assurance rating, along with key observations and 
recommendations for each audit objective.  However, upon identification of any 
high-risk issues, internal audit will immediately notify management during the 
course of the audit to enable appropriate remedial action to be taken prior to being 
formally published in the audit report. 

 
Page 61

Agenda Item 9



Follow Up Reviews 
 
21. For annual audits (i.e., key financial topics), follow ups are completed as part of 

the next internal audit review.  For all other planned assurance work, the timing of 
the follow up is dependent upon available audit resources, however, internal audit 
will aim to complete the follow up review within six months of distribution of the 
final audit report. 
 

22. For consultancy work, the completion of follow ups will be agreed with key 
management and officers. 
 

23. For any open recommendations remaining after completion of the follow up, 
regular monitoring of recommended actions will be performed by internal audit and 
reported to committee.  

 
Reporting to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
 
24. Monitoring of internal audit’s progress against the internal audit plan along with 

summarising the outcomes of recent audit and follow up work will be presented to 
the joint audit and governance committee. 

   
25. Following completion of the internal audit plan for 2022/23 we will produce an 

annual internal audit report on the work of internal audit in the year ended 31 
March 2023, and to advise the committee of the internal audit manager’s opinion 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environments at 
SODC and VWHDC. 
 

Climate and Ecological Impact Implications 
 
26. There are no direct climate or ecological implications arising from this report. 

However, per the climate action plan, for each individual audit in the 2022/23 
internal audit plan, we will include risk considerations for the climate emergency in 
our audit work. 
 

Financial Implications 
 
27. The internal audit plan can be delivered from within the approved 2022/23 budget, 

therefore there are no financial implications attached to this report. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
28. None 
 
Risk Implications 
 
29. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits. 
 
 

VICTORIA DORMAN-SMITH 
INTERNAL AUDIT MANAGER 

Page 62

Agenda Item 9



Schedule of Auditable Activity (SAA) - by risk score

No. SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT TOPIC COUNCIL

LAST 

AUDITED

SODC LAST 

AUDIT RATING

VWHDC LAST 

AUDIT RATING

2022/23

YES/NO

2023/24

YES/NO

FINANCIAL 

RISK 

FRAUD RISK 

(x2)

REPUTATIONAL 

RISK LEGAL RISK

CORPORATE 

RISK

RISK SCORE 

(MIN.7, MAX.21) 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

102 Finance Strategic Finance Payroll Joint 2020/21 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 3 3 21 Yes Yes Yes

131 Corporate Services People & Culture Payroll Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited Yes No 3 3 3 3 3 21 Yes Yes Yes

143 Corporate Services IT Programmes Information Security (incl. Cyber Security) Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited No No 3 3 3 3 3 21 Yes

142 Corporate Services IT Programmes IT Operations (incl. IT helpdesk, asset mgt, Active Directory) Joint 2015/16 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 3 3 3 2 3 20 Yes

93 Finance Strategic Finance Financial Accounting Joint Not audited No rating No rating Yes No 3 3 3 3 1 19 Yes

109 Finance Revenues & Benefits Council Tax Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress Yes No 3 3 3 2 2 19 Yes Yes Yes

112 Finance Revenues & Benefits Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction Scheme Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress Yes No 3 3 3 2 2 19 Yes Yes Yes

113 Finance Revenues & Benefits National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress Yes No 3 3 3 2 2 19 Yes Yes Yes

114 Finance Exchequer & Procurement Accounts Payable Joint 2021/22 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 3 3 3 2 2 19 Yes Yes Yes

120 Finance Exchequer & Procurement Procurement Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 3 2 2 3 19 Yes

22 Legal & Democratic Information Governance & Data Protection Data Protection/GDPR Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 2 3 3 2 18 Yes

71 Policy & Programmes Programmes & Assurance Insurance Joint 2018/19 Substantial Substantial No No 3 2 3 3 2 18 Yes

99 Finance Strategic Finance General Ledger Joint 2021/22 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 3 3 2 1 3 18 Yes Yes Yes

106 Finance Strategic Finance Treasury Management Joint 2021/22 Full Full Yes No 3 3 3 1 2 18 Yes Yes Yes

115 Finance Exchequer & Procurement Accounts Receivable Joint 2021/22 Full Full Yes No 3 3 2 2 2 18 Yes Yes Yes

117 Finance Exchequer & Procurement Cashiering Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 3 3 3 2 1 18

119 Finance Exchequer & Procurement Contract Management Joint 2021/22 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 2 3 2 3 18 Yes

41 Development & Corporate Landlord Strategic Property Strategic Property Joint 2021/22 Limited Limited No No 3 1 3 3 3 17 Yes

42 Development & Corporate Landlord Strategic Property Asset Management Strategy Joint 2021/22 Limited Limited No No 2 2 3 3 3 17 Yes

49 Development & Corporate Landlord Property Assets Beacon VWHDC 2017/18 No rating Satisfactory No Yes 3 2 3 1 3 17 Yes

50 Development & Corporate Landlord Property Assets Cornerstone SODC 2019/20 Limited No rating No Yes 3 2 3 1 3 17 Yes

52 Development & Corporate Landlord Technical Services Grounds & Parks Maintenance Joint 2020/21 No rating No rating Yes No 3 2 3 2 2 17 Yes

70 Policy & Programmes Programmes & Assurance Risk Management Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 3 3 3 1 1 17 Yes

72 Policy & Programmes Programmes & Assurance Business Continuity Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 3 2 3 1 3 17 Yes

80 Policy & Programmes Planning Policy S106/CIL Policy Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 3 2 3 2 2 17

107 Finance Strategic Finance S106/CIL Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 3 2 3 2 2 17

108 Finance Revenues & Benefits Business Grants Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 2 3 3 2 2 17

110 Finance Revenues & Benefits Council Tax Rebate Joint Not audited No rating No rating Yes No 2 3 3 2 2 17 Yes

111 Finance Revenues & Benefits Discretionary Fund Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress Yes No 2 3 3 2 2 17 Yes

118 Finance Exchequer & Procurement Cash Office Joint 2021/22 Limited Limited No No 3 3 2 1 2 17

46 Development & Corporate Landlord Property Assets Operational & Non-Operational Estate Mgt Joint 2016/17 Limited Limited No No 3 2 3 1 2 16 Yes

47 Development & Corporate Landlord Property Assets Facilities Joint 2016/17 Limited Limited No No 3 2 3 1 2 16 Yes

79 Policy & Programmes Planning Policy Local Plan Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 3 1 3 2 3 16 Yes

83 Policy & Programmes Planning Policy Transport Infrastructure Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 3 1 3 2 3 16

84 Policy & Programmes Planning Policy Oxon 2050 Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 3 1 3 2 3 16

91 Policy & Programmes Community Wellbeing Garden Communities Joint Not audited No rating No rating Yes No 3 2 3 2 1 16 Yes

139 Corporate Services People & Culture Health & Safety Joint 2016/17 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 1 3 3 2 16 Yes

141 Corporate Services IT Programmes IT Strategy and Programmes Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 3 1 3 2 3 16

2 Planning Development - Large Sites Enforcement Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 1 3 15 Yes

21 Legal & Democratic Information Governance & Data Protection Information Governance (FOI, EIR, SAR) Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 1 2 3 3 3 15

37 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Waste Management & Recycling Joint 2015/16 Substantial Substantial No No 3 1 3 1 3 15 Yes

38 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Garden Waste Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 3 1 3 1 3 15

48 Development & Corporate Landlord Property Assets Leisure Centres Joint 2015/16 Satisfactory Satisfactory No Yes 3 1 3 2 2 15 Yes

89 Policy & Programmes Community Wellbeing Community Hub & Recovery Joint 2021/22 Substantial Substantial No No 2 2 3 2 2 15

94 Finance Strategic Finance Budgetary Control Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 1 3 1 3 15 Yes

95 Finance Strategic Finance Capital Management & Accounting Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress Yes No 3 2 2 1 2 15 Yes Yes Yes

97 Finance Strategic Finance Council Fees & Charges Joint 2021/22 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 1 3 1 3 15

105 Finance Strategic Finance Receipt of Income Arrangements Joint 2015/16 Full Full No No 3 2 2 1 2 15 Yes

134 Corporate Services People & Culture Pension Administration Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 3 2 2 2 1 15

1 Planning Development - Large Sites Major Applications Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 1 2 14 Yes

3 Planning Development - Large Sites Appeals Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 1 2 14 Yes

4 Planning Development - Applications Building Control / Registration Joint 2016/17 Limited Limited Yes No 2 2 3 1 2 14 Yes

5 Planning Development - Applications Minor/Other Applications Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 1 2 14 Yes

19 Legal & Democratic Democratic Services Elections & Elections Payments Joint 2019/20 Limited Limited No No 1 2 3 2 3 14 Yes

23 Legal & Democratic Licensing & Community Safety Licensing Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 2 1 14 Yes

43 Development & Corporate Landlord Strategic Property Development Initiatives Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 2 2 2 2 2 14

54 Development & Corporate Landlord Technical Services Toilets Joint 2020/21 No rating No rating No No 2 2 2 2 2 14

59 Development & Corporate Landlord Economic Development Economic Development Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 2 2 3 1 2 14

62 Partnerships Strategic Partnerships 5C Partnerships Client Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 2 2 2 2 2 14

67 Partnerships Future Partnerships 5CP Transition & Renegotiation Programme Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 2 2 2 2 2 14

68 Policy & Programmes Programmes & Assurance Corporate Programmes (Corporate Delivery Framework) Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited Yes No 2 1 3 2 3 14 Yes

69 Policy & Programmes Programmes & Assurance Corporate Project Management Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited Yes No 2 1 3 2 3 14 Yes

128 Corporate Services People & Culture Recruitment & Selection (incl. DBS) Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 2 2 2 2 2 14 Yes

132 Corporate Services People & Culture Travel & Subsistence (expenses) Joint 2020/21 Limited Limited No No 2 3 2 1 1 14

135 Corporate Services People & Culture 5 Councils/Zellis Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 2 1 3 2 3 14

140 Corporate Services People & Culture Lone Working Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 2 1 3 2 3 14 Yes

25 Legal & Democratic Licensing & Community Safety Safeguarding Joint 2016/17 Substantial Substantial No No 2 1 3 3 1 13 Yes

29 Housing & Environment Housing Delivery Affordable Housing Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 2 3 2 2 13

30 Housing & Environment Housing Delivery Community Led Housing Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 2 3 2 2 13

34 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Disabled Facility Grants Joint 2019/20 Full Full No No 2 2 2 1 2 13 Yes

44
Development & Corporate Landlord Strategic Property Disposals Policy

Joint
2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress No

No
2 2 2 2 1 13

45
Development & Corporate Landlord Strategic Property Property Database

Joint
Not audited No rating No rating No

No
2 1 2 2 3 13

51
Development & Corporate Landlord Property Assets Community Centres

Joint
Not audited No rating No rating No

No
2 1 3 2 2 13

73 Policy & Programmes Programmes & Assurance Emergency Planning Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 3 1 3 13 Yes

86 Policy & Programmes Community Wellbeing Community Grants Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 3 1 1 13 Yes

98 Finance Strategic Finance Credit Card Usage Joint 2017/18 Limited Limited No No 2 3 1 1 1 13 Yes

101 Finance Strategic Finance Leases Joint Not audited No rating No rating Yes No 3 2 1 1 1 13 Yes

133 Corporate Services People & Culture Annual Leave (incl. annualised hours policy) Joint 2020/21 Limited Limited No No 2 2 2 2 1 13

144 Corporate Services IT Programmes Disaster Recovery Joint 2013/14 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 3 1 3 13 Yes

15 Legal & Democratic Legal Services Legal (incl. RIPA) Joint 2013/14 Full Full No No 2 1 3 1 2 12 Yes

16 Legal & Democratic Democratic Services Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policies Joint 2014/15 Limited Limited No No 1 3 2 1 1 12 Yes

17 Legal & Democratic Democratic Services Whistleblowing Joint 2014/15 Limited Limited No No 1 3 2 1 1 12 Yes

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS OFFICER REQUEST INTERNAL AUDIT RISK SCORING THREE YEAR AUDIT PLAN

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 9



No. SERVICE AREA SERVICE TEAM AUDIT TOPIC COUNCIL

LAST 

AUDITED

SODC LAST 

AUDIT RATING

VWHDC LAST 

AUDIT RATING

2022/23

YES/NO

2023/24

YES/NO

FINANCIAL 

RISK 

FRAUD RISK 

(x2)

REPUTATIONAL 

RISK LEGAL RISK

CORPORATE 

RISK

RISK SCORE 

(MIN.7, MAX.21) 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS OFFICER REQUEST INTERNAL AUDIT RISK SCORING THREE YEAR AUDIT PLAN

18 Legal & Democratic Democratic Services Corporate Governance Joint 2014/15 Full Full No No 1 2 3 1 2 12 Yes

31 Housing & Environment Housing Delivery Mobile Home Parks Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 2 1 1 12 Yes

32 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Housing Allocations Joint 2012/13 Full Full Yes No 1 2 3 2 1 12 Yes

53
Development & Corporate Landlord Technical Services Tree Management & Inspections

Joint
2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory

Yes No
2 1 3 2 1 12

Yes

57
Development & Corporate Landlord Technical Services Car Parks

Joint
2021/22 Satisfactory Satisfactory No

No
2 2 2 1 1 12

88 Policy & Programmes Community Wellbeing SODC Online Lottery SODC 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 2 2 1 1 12 Yes

96 Finance Strategic Finance Community Loans Scheme SODC 2013/14 Full Full No No 2 2 2 1 1 12 Yes

100 Finance Strategic Finance Internal Recharges Joint 2017/18 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 3 1 1 1 2 12 Yes

116 Finance Exchequer & Procurement Bank Contract & Arrangements Joint 2014/15 Full Full No No 2 1 1 2 3 12 Yes

127 Corporate Services People & Culture HR Advisory (incl. performance, grievance, absence) Joint 2018/19 Limited Limited Yes No 2 1 2 2 2 12 Yes

137 Corporate Services People & Culture Organisational Culture Joint Not audited No rating No rating No Yes 2 1 2 2 2 12 Yes

14 Legal & Democratic Legal Services Land Charges Joint 2021/22 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 3 1 1 11

20 Legal & Democratic Democratic Services Gifts and Hospitality (councillors) Joint 2016/17 Substantial Substantial Yes No 1 2 3 1 1 11 Yes

28 Housing & Environment Housing Delivery Housing Delivery Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 3 2 2 11

40 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Food Safety Joint 2013/14 Satisfactory Satisfactory Yes No 1 1 3 2 2 11 Yes

64 Partnerships Strategic Partnerships Growth Board Support (Future Oxfordshire Partnership) Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 2 1 2 1 2 11

65 Partnerships Future Partnerships Housing & Growth Deal Delivery Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 2 1 2 1 2 11

75 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy Corporate Plan (incl. Performance Management) Joint 2016/17 Limited Limited No No 2 1 2 1 2 11 Yes

85 Policy & Programmes Community Wellbeing Health Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 2 1 3 1 1 11

87 Policy & Programmes Community Wellbeing Assets of Community Value Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 2 2 1 11

103 Finance Strategic Finance Petty Cash Procedures Joint 2018/19 Limited Limited No No 2 2 1 1 1 11 Yes

104 Finance Strategic Finance Petty Cash Spot Checks Joint 2017/18 Full Full No No 2 2 1 1 1 11 Yes

129 Corporate Services People & Culture Learning & Development Joint 2021/22 Audit in progress Audit in progress No No 2 1 2 1 2 11

130 Corporate Services People & Culture Gifts & Hospitality (officers) Joint 2016/17 Substantial Substantial Yes No 1 2 3 1 1 11 Yes

145 Corporate Services IT Programmes IT Development Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 3 1 3 11

26 Legal & Democratic Licensing & Community Safety CCTV Contract Joint 2009/10 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 2 1 2 1 1 10

27 Housing & Environment Housing Delivery Housing Strategy Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 3 2 1 10

33 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Temporary Accommodation Joint 2014/15 Satisfactory Limited Yes No 1 1 3 1 2 10 Yes

36 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Environmental Protection Joint 2016/17 Limited Satisfactory No No 1 1 3 2 1 10 Yes

61
Development & Corporate Landlord Economic Development OxLEP Local Economic Input

Joint
Not audited No rating No rating No

No
2 1 2 1 1 10

63 Partnerships Strategic Partnerships OxLEP & Enterprise Zones Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 2 1 2 1 1 10

121 Corporate Services Communications & Engagement Communications Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 3 1 2 10

124 Corporate Services Communications & Engagement Corporate Consultations Joint 2015/16 Substantial Substantial Yes No 1 1 3 1 2 10 Yes

126 Corporate Services Customer Services Complaints Joint 2016/17 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 3 1 2 10 Yes

136 Corporate Services People & Culture HR Policy Framework Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 2 2 2 10

24 Legal & Democratic Licensing & Community Safety Community Safety Joint 2010/11 Not known Not known No No 1 1 3 1 1 9 Yes

39 Housing & Environment Environmental Services Litter & Street Cleaning Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 3 1 1 9

56
Development & Corporate Landlord Technical Services Cemetries

SODC
Not audited No rating No rating No

No
1 1 2 1 2 9

76 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy External Funding Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 2 1 1 1 1 9 Yes

92 Policy & Programmes Community Wellbeing Active Communities Joint Not audited No rating No rating No Yes 1 1 3 1 1 9 Yes

35 Housing & Environment Housing Needs Private Sector Housing Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 2 1 1 8

55
Development & Corporate Landlord Technical Services Engineering Services (Sewerage, Flooding, Drainage)

Joint
Not audited No rating No rating No

No
1 1 2 1 1 8

58
Development & Corporate Landlord Technical Services Moorings

VWHDC
2019/20 No rating Satisfactory No

No
1 1 2 1 1 8

66 Partnerships Future Partnerships Arc Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 2 1 1 8

77 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy External Consultations & Motions Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 2 1 1 8

81 Policy & Programmes Planning Policy Neighbourhood Planning Joint 2015/16 Limited Limited No No 1 1 2 1 1 8

82 Policy & Programmes Planning Policy Community Led Planning Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 2 1 1 8

90 Policy & Programmes Community Wellbeing Arts Development Joint Not audited No rating No rating No Yes 1 1 2 1 1 8 Yes

122 Corporate Services Communications & Engagement Community Engagement Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 2 1 1 8

123 Corporate Services Communications & Engagement Marketing Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 2 1 1 8

125 Corporate Services Customer Services Customer Services Joint Not audited No rating No rating No Yes 1 1 2 1 1 8 Yes

138 Corporate Services People & Culture Diversity & Inclusion Joint 2011/12 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 2 1 1 8 Yes

147 Corporate Services IT Programmes Street Naming & Numbering Joint 2018/19 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 2 1 1 8 Yes

6 Planning Planning Business Registration DM Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 7 Yes

7 Planning Planning Business Footpaths Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 1 1 1 7

8 Planning Planning Business Planning Business Support Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 7 Yes

9 Planning Planning Business Urban Design Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 7 Yes

10 Planning Planning Business Trees Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 1 1 1 7

11 Planning Planning Business Landscape Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 7 Yes

12 Planning Planning Business Ecology Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 7 Yes

13 Planning Planning Business Conservation & Listed Buildings Joint 2019/20 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 7 Yes

60
Development & Corporate Landlord Economic Development Market Towns

Joint
Not audited No rating No rating No

No
1 1 1 1 1 7

74 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy Insight, Policy, Influence Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 1 1 1 7

78 Policy & Programmes Insight & Policy Climate & Biodiversity Joint Not audited No rating No rating No No 1 1 1 1 1 7

146 Corporate Services IT Programmes Data Capture/Geographical Information Systems (GIS) Joint 2008/09 Satisfactory Satisfactory No No 1 1 1 1 1 7 Yes

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 9



Internal Audit Allocation 2022/23                            APPENDIX 2 
 
DESCRIPTION 
(analysis of description overleaf) 

DAYS 
2022/23 

DAYS 
2020/21 VARIANCE 

Notes 
(overleaf) 

     
Total available days 1,040 1,040 0 1 
1 internal audit manager (52 weeks x 5 days) 260 260 0 
3 auditors (52 weeks x 5 days) 780 780 0 
     
Total lost days 213 179 34 2 
Annual leave entitlement (planned) 115 115 0 
Public holidays, office Christmas closure (planned) 48 44 4 
Other leave (planned) 10 0 10 
Sickness absence (unplanned) 40 20 20 
     
Total non-chargeable days 90 86 4 3 
Administration  50 50 0 
Meeting attendance 20 16 4 
Training and development 20 20 0 
     
Total chargeable days  737 775 (38) 4 
Internal audit plan 2021/22  55 44 11 

Internal audit plan 2022/23 (key financial audits) 119 160 (41) 

Internal audit plan 2022/23 (planned assurance) 305 300 5 
Internal audit plan 2022/23 (planned consultancy) 60 44 16 
Consultancy (unplanned) 40 42 (2) 
Contingency/investigations (unplanned) 24 35 (11) 
Ad-hoc advice (unplanned) 24 35 (11) 
Follow up reviews  30 25 5 
Audit management 80 80 0 
Five Councils Partnership 0 10 (10) 
     
Total lost, non-chargeable, chargeable days 1,040 1,040 0  
     
Proportion of chargeable days 71% 75% (4%)  
Proportion of non-chargeable days 9% 8% 1%  
Proportion of lost days 20% 17% 3%  
     

  
  

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



Analysis of description         APPENDIX 2 
 
Administration  
 1-2-1’s 
 Timekeeping (timesheets, time allocation, individual work plans) 
 E-mails 
 Recruitment 

 
Meeting attendance 
 Staff briefings, internal audit, finance managers, operational management group, statutory 

officers, senior management team 
 
Training and development 
 In-house training  
 External role related training (including internal audit network events) 
 Study leave  

 

Audit management 
 Preparation and attendance at committee 
 Revision of audit methodology 
 Quality assurance/file reviews 
 Liaising with external audit 
 Raising the profile of internal audit 
 Internal audit presence on the website and intranet at both sites 
 Preparation and monitoring of the internal audit plan 
 Budgetary control 
 Delivery of training 
 Performance management 
 Recommendations database 

 

Ad-hoc advice 
 Informal responsive advice to queries from officers 

 

Consultancy 
 Formal governance, risk and control project work based on agreed terms of reference (i.e. 

project member for implementation of new systems, system mapping, delivery of training to 
members and staff) 
 

Contingency/investigations 
 Responsive work issued and agreed by the S151 officer, joint audit and governance 

committee, or senior management team 
 

Five Councils Partnership 
 Audit assistance in relation to Capita services (i.e. HR, payroll, finance and IT) as 

requested by senior management 
  

Page 66

Agenda Item 9



Notes and explanations for variances against previous year    APPENDIX 2 
 
1. Total available days: no change 

 The calculation of available auditor days is based on a fully staffed internal audit team 
for 12 months (one internal audit manager and three auditors).  
 

2.  Total lost days increased by 34 days from 179 to 213 
 Annual leave entitlement (no change): includes annual leave entitlement, plus 

purchase of additional leave  
 Public holidays and office closure (plus 4 days): allocation of 12 public holidays 

per auditor. One additional public holiday in 2022/23 due to the Platinum Jubilee. 
 Sickness absence (plus 20 days): allowance of 10 sick days per officer based on 

historic data. 
 

3. Total non-chargeable days increased by 4 days from 86 to 90 
 Administration (no change): allocation based on the average number of days used 

over the last three years.  
 Meeting attendance (plus 4 days): allocation of five days per auditor, based on the 

average number of days used over the last three years. 
 Training and development (no change): allocation of five days per auditor for in-

house and external training.  

 
4. Total chargeable days decreased by 38 days from 7775 to 737 

 Internal audit plan 2021/22 (plus 11 days): allocation of 55 days for the completion 
of eight 2021/22 audits, which have not been finalised by 31 March 2022.  

 Internal audit plan 2022/23 (key financial audits) (less 41 days): the reduction in 
budgeted hours can be achieved due to the removal of one key financial audit, three 
experienced auditors, and bringing Exchequer services back in-house.  

 Internal audit plan 2022/23 (planned assurance) (plus 5 days): the increased in the 
number of planned assurance days due to the nature and scope of audit topics on the 
audit plan.  

 Internal audit plan 2022/23 (planned consultancy) (plus 16 days): there are three 
planned consultancy audits in 2022/23 identified from audit planning work. 

 Consultancy (unplanned) (less 2 days): allocation of five days per eight service 
teams.   

 Contingency/investigations (unplanned) (less 11 days): allocation of three days 
per eight service teams.   

 Ad-hoc advice (less 11 days): allocation of three days per eight service teams.   
 Follow up reviews (plus 5 days): allocation of 30 days to complete follow up reviews 

for 2021/22 audits and 2022/23 audits scheduled for Q1 and Q2. 
 Audit management (no change): allocation is in line with the average number of 

days used over the last three years.   
 Five Councils Partnership (less 10 days): no allocated days as audit assistance 

would be included in consultancy or contingency hours.    

 
 
 

Page 67

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX 3  

1 
 

Proposed Internal Audit Plan 2022/2023                                                                                                                                      

No. Service Area Audit Topic 
Risk Score 

(min 7, max 21) 

Budget Days Proposed Start Date 

SODC VWHDC Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Annual Key Financial Audits 

1 Finance Accounts Payable 19 6 6    X 

2 Finance Accounts Receivable 18 6 6   X  

3 Finance Capital Management & Accounting 15 3.5 3.5    X 

4 Finance Council Tax 19 8 8  X   

5 Finance General Ledger 18 3.5 3.5    X 

6 Finance Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme (HB&CTRS) 

19 12 12   X  

7 Finance National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) 19 8 8   X  

8 Corporate Services & 
Finance 

Payroll 21 10 10 X    

9 Finance Treasury Management 18 2.5 2.5    X 

Total Budget Days 60 60  

 

  

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 9



APPENDIX 3  

2 
 

No. Service Area Audit Topic 
Risk Score 

(min 7, max 21) 

Budget Days Proposed Start Date 

SODC VWHDC Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Planned Assurance Audits 

10 Development & Corporate 
Landlord 

Grounds & Parks Maintenance (incl. ROSPA, 
Tree Management & Inspections) 

17 15 15   X  

11 Housing & Environment Housing Allocations 12 8 8  X   

12 Housing & Environment Temporary Accommodation 10 8 8    X 

13 Housing & Environment Food Safety 11 10 10    X 

14 Finance Financial Accounting 19 8 8  X   

15 Finance Leases 13 8 8  X   

16 Finance Council Tax Rebate 17 8 8  X   

17 Finance Discretionary Fund  17 8 8   X  

18 Legal & Democratic Gifts and Hospitality (Officers & Councillors) 11 3.5 3.5 X    

19 Legal & Democratic Community Safety 9 3.5 3.5 X    

20 Corporate Services Corporate Consultations 10 8 8   X  

21 Corporate Services Grievance Policy 12 3.5 3.5 X    

22 Corporate Services Health & Safety (incl. Lone Working) 16 10 10  X   

23 Corporate Services Information Security 21 10 10 X    

24 Corporate Services IT General Controls - Council Managed Systems 20 15 15 X    

25 Policy & Programmes Corporate Delivery Framework 14 10 10    X 

26 Policy & Programmes Business Continuity 17 8 8    X 

27 Policy & Programmes Risk Management 17 8 8    X 

Total Budget Days 153 153  

Planned Consultancy Reviews 

28 Planning Building Control 14 10 10    X 

29 Planning Ocella System Functionality 14 10 10  X   

30 Policy & Programmes Garden Communities 16 10 10    X 

Total Budget Days 30 30   27.5 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 9



APPENDIX 3  

3 
 

 
High Level Audit Scope                   

No. Service Area Audit Topic Audit Scope 

Annual Key Financial Audits 

1 Finance Accounts Payable Invoice and refunds processing. Duplicate suppliers and payments. Manual, direct debit and 
BACS payment transactions. 

2 Finance Accounts Receivable Invoice processing, including periodic invoices. Recovery, aged debts, cancellations and write 
offs. Invoice suppressions. Raising invoices by service teams performed in accordance with 
financial procedures.  

3 Finance Capital Management and Accounting Capital financial strategy and asset management plan. Capital contracts and budget monitoring. 
Completeness and accuracy of asset register, including reconciliations. 

4 Finance Council Tax Liabilities, including discounts and exemptions. Payments, credits, refunds and suspense 
transactions. Recovery, enforcement, and write-offs.  

5 Finance General Ledger Bank reconciliations. Suspense account balances and transactions. Journal transfers, including 
authorisation and documentation.  

6 Finance Housing Benefits and Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme  

Housing benefits and CTRS payments. Benefits assessments and subsidy claims. Benefit 
overpayments. 

7 Finance National Non-Domestic Rates 
(NNDR) 

Valuation records for new and amended properties. NNDR billing, payment, and refund 
transactions. Debt recovery and write offs. 

8 Corporate Services 
& Finance 

Payroll  Amendments to standing data (starters, leavers, overtime, variations). Monthly payroll 
processing. Payroll records, including reconciliations between systems. 

9 Finance Treasury Management Investments and borrowings (including authorisation, counterparty limits, coding). Treasury 
management performance. Access level controls within treasury management and banking 
systems. 

 

  

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 9



APPENDIX 3  

4 
 

 
No. Service Area Audit Area Audit Scope 

Planned Assurance Audits 

10 Development & 
Corporate Landlord 

Grounds & Parks Maintenance (incl. 
ROSPA, Tree Management & 
Inspections) 

ROSPA inspections and reporting. Tree management and inspections. Grounds and parks 
maintenance processes, including stock management and procurement. 

11 Housing & 
Environment 

Housing Allocations Allocations are performed consistently and fairly, in line with formal procedures. 

12 Housing & 
Environment 

Temporary Accommodation Accommodation is provided consistently and fairly, in line with formal procedures. 

13 Housing & 
Environment 

Food Safety Food safety inspections process. Management of individual contractors. Response to Covid-19 
regulations 

14 Finance Financial Accounting Accounts preparation process, including adherence to the latest guidance and standards.  

15 Finance Leases Operating and finance leases are accounted for correctly under IFRS16.  

16 Finance Council Tax Rebate Council tax rebates issued in line with government guidance. 

17 Finance Discretionary Fund  Discretionary funds issued in line with government guidance. 

18 Legal & Democratic Gifts and Hospitality (Officers & 
Councillors) 

Reporting and monitoring of officer and councillor gifts and hospitality. 

19 Legal & Democratic Community Safety Contents and application of the Community Safety Partnership annual plan. 

20 Corporate Services Corporate Consultations Consultations are transparent, fair, and documented. Actions are implemented timely. 

21 Corporate Services Grievance Policy Established processes to respond to officer grievances in a consistent and fair manner. 

22 Corporate Services Health & Safety (incl. Lone Working) Building control fee billings and collection. ISO readiness assessment and review progress 
against ISO recommendations. 

23 Corporate Services Information Security IT and data security management in hybrid working arrangement. Preparation and response to 
cybersecurity incidents. Cybersecurity awareness of officers and councillors.  

24 Corporate Services IT General Controls - Council 
Managed Systems 

Logical access, change management, IT operations and physical security controls over council 
managed IT systems. 

25 Policy & 
Programmes 

Corporate Delivery Framework Contents and application of the corporate delivery framework. 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 9



APPENDIX 3  

5 
 

26 Policy & 
Programmes 

Business Continuity Contents and application of the councils’ business continuity plan.  

27 Policy & 
Programmes 

Risk Management Risk management methodologies follow best practice whilst meeting the needs of the councils.  

No. Service Area Audit Area Audit Scope 

Planned Consultancy Reviews 

28 Planning Building Control Provision of consultancy services in relation to legislation changes (Environment Act 2021 and 
Building Safety Bill). 

29 Planning Ocella System Functionality Utilisation of Ocella system functionality by planning teams and identification of process 
efficiencies. 

30 Policy & 
Programmes 

Garden Communities Review of non-financial management processes and procedures, including retention of 
documentation. 

 

  

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 9



APPENDIX 3  

6 
 

Key: 

 

Planned Audits (Key Financial, Assurance & Consultancy): 

All audit topics on the schedule of auditable activity are given a risk score, which takes into consideration the level of exposure to financial, fraud, 
reputational, legal, and corporate risks. The internal audit manager considers the risk score, along with the last audit date, previous audit ratings, 
officer requests for a review, and any external or emerging risks for each audit topic to arrive at the final audit plan. 

 

Consultancy Reviews: 

Consulting services are defined as advisory and client related service activities, the nature and scope of which are agreed with the client, are 
intended to add value and improve an organisation’s governance, risk management and control processes without the internal auditor assuming 
management responsibility.  Examples include counsel, advice, facilitation, and training.   
 

High Level Audit Scope: 

The proposed audit scope, based on planning activities and previous audit reviews is detailed above.  Prior to the start of each individual audit a risk 
assessment and scoping exercise will be performed by the auditor, and terms of reference are to be agreed with the auditee(s). 

 

Audit Start Date 

The audit start date indicates the estimated quarter the audit fieldwork is due to commence; however, some audits may be performed over more than 
one quarter.  We will seek to agree a date which ensures the availability of key officers. 

 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 9



 

\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\3\AI00015341\$y0idfwct.docx 
1 

 

Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee 
 

 
  
Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Ben Watson 

Telephone: 07717 836755 

Textphone: 18001 07717 836755 

E-mail: ben.watson@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: 

South: Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 

Vale: Andrew Crawford 

Tel: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

DATE: 29 March 2022 

 

 

Insourcing of Exchequer Services and 

Financial Management System upgrade 

Recommendation(s) 

That Joint Audit and Governance Committee: 

1. Notes the Insourcing of Exchequer Services and Financial Management 
System upgrade report 

2. Considers whether to request Internal Audit to conduct additional fieldwork to 
address any concerns of Committee members 

 
 

Page 74

Agenda Item 10



 

\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\3\AI00015341\$y0idfwct.docx 
2 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To update Joint Audit and Governance Committee with the programme of activities 
related to the insourcing of Exchequer Services and Financial Systems 
Programme, the current status of the service (supported by Internal Audit reports) 
and invite Committee members to consider whether any additional fieldwork should 
be conducted by Internal Audit. 

Strategic Objectives  

2. An efficient and well-functioning Exchequer Services team, alongside a modern, 
supported, suite of Finance Systems, supports the councils’ operational activities 
which underpin their strategic objectives. 

Background 

3. Exchequer Services was outsourced to Capita in 2006 under South and Vale’s 
previous “Financial Services” contract.  Part of this contract made Capita 
responsible for providing services for Accounts Payable (AP), Accounts Receivable 
(AR), and the provision of a Financial Management System (FMS) (collectively 
“Exchequer Services”).  This position was maintained when the councils entered 
into the Corporate Services Contract with Capita on 1 August 2016.  The 2016 
contract expanded the range of financial services provided by Capita to include 
Accountancy functions. 

4. Under the Financial Services contract that commenced in 2006 Capita 
implemented the “Agresso” FMS for both councils in 2007/08.  One upgrade of the 
FMS was undertaken in 2011, but other than that little development took place and 
by 2019 the system (now branded Unit4) had fallen out of support and placed the 
councils in a position of risk. 

5. During the period of the Financial Services contract the councils used an Income 
Management System (IMS) called ICON which they purchased from Civica.  ICON 
was used for all payment processing including cashiering activities at the councils’ 
offices and online/automated telephone credit/debit card payments. 

6. The Corporate Services Contract transferred responsibility for the IMS to Capita 
and, as part of its contract bid, Capita committed to migrate the councils to its own 
“Pay360” IMS.  The migration was successfully completed in December 2018. 

7. In February 2020 Cabinet approved the two-stage return of financial services from 
Capita.  With effect from 1 April 2020 the Accountancy Service was removed from 
the contract and returned to the councils, with an agreement that the Exchequer 
Service was expected to be removed from 1 April 2021, subject to confirmation by 
the councils by a deadline date of 31 December 2020.   

 

 

 

 

Page 75

Agenda Item 10



 

\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\3\AI00015341\$y0idfwct.docx 
3 

 

8. During May and June 2020 an independent review of the councils’ Exchequer 
functions (as provided by Capita) was undertaken which had the following brief: 

a. Review the current service against expectations and contractual obligations 
(“as-is”) 

b. Set out what a good service looks like now and in the future (considering 
changes in technology, operations, and customer expectations) 

c. Complete a gap analysis to identify the change needed by the councils 

d. Define the roadmap required to deliver the preferred service going forward. 

9. As a result of the findings of the review, in September 2020 both Cabinets agreed 
to withdraw Exchequer Services from the Capita contract, and upgrade “Agresso” 
to the latest, cloud-based, version of the Unit4 FMS.  Cabinets also agreed to 
maintain use of Pay360 and directly contract with the Pay360 division of Capita to 
facilitate this, alongside the procurement of a BACS Bureau service.  Ancillary 
management decisions were taken to move income management activities 
internally from the Customer Services function to Finance and create a centralised 
IT application support team. 

Programme of work post-Cabinet decision 

10. Following the Cabinets’ decisions in September 2020 officers set upon a 
programme of work to: 

 Formally exit the Exchequer Services element of the Corporate 
Services Contract.  This was a combined effort with the other councils in 
the 5 Councils Partnership as they too had decided to exit this element of 
the contract.  Project management activities were centralised at Capita’s 
request, with South and Vale taking the lead in project management.  
Despite a tight timescale, and a considerable number of activities to 
complete, the successful contract exit was completed on 31 March 2021 

 Form a contractual relationship with Unit4 for FMS provision and 
upgrade to the latest, cloud-based, version of the application.  The 
councils decided to use the Government’s “G-Cloud” framework to facilitate 
this piece of work.  This enabled the councils to keep procurement costs to 
a minimum and take advantage of pricing agreed at a scale they could not 
achieve by going direct to the market.  The contractual terms were agreed 
for a two-year period and the councils have the option to extend the contract 
for an additional year on two separate occasions.  Although the timetable 
was challenging, the upgrade was successfully completed in the final two 
weeks of March 2021, with the new upgraded FMS going live on 1 April 
2021.  Subsequently, the councils have already benefited from one 
upgrade, with another planned for March 2022 (compared to no upgrades 
between 2011 and 2021 under the previous service model) 

 

 

 

Page 76

Agenda Item 10



 

\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\3\AI00015341\$y0idfwct.docx 
4 

 

 Form a direct contractual relationship with Capita’s Pay360 division 
for the use of the Pay360 IMS.  As with the FMS, the councils decided to 
use a framework agreement for this piece of work to keep procurement 
costs to a minimum.  A framework set up by Kent County Council’s 
commercial services division was identified as suitable, with competitive 
pricing.  The contractual terms were agreed for a five-year period to partially 
coincide with the term of the Corporate Services Contract which ends in 
September 2025 (to avoid early exit costs), but to also reduce the potential 
of multiple changes being required at the same time in 2025.  The 
contractual paperwork was signed in time for the 31 March 2021 deadline 
and the councils experienced a seamless transition 

 Procure a “BACS Bureau” to facilitate payments to suppliers and the 
collection of direct debits from customers.  With Capita no longer 
providing Exchequer Services the councils required a mechanism to make 
BACS payments to suppliers and to collect direct debits from non-council 
tax and business rate customers (garden waste, mobile home rents, 
sewage charges, etc.).  As with the other procurement activities, the 
councils chose to use a framework and opted for G-Cloud and selected 
Bottomline Technologies, a market leader in BACS Bureau provision.  The 
contractual terms were agreed for a two-year period and the councils have 
the option to extend the contract for an additional year on two separate 
occasions.  The contractual paperwork was signed in time for the 31 March 
2021 deadline and thanks to excellent support from Bottomline and the 
councils’ bankers, Barclays, the service was operationally ready for 1 April 
2021 

 Recruit an Exchequer team to deliver the service.  Because of the long-
standing Capita arrangements, the councils did not have an existing team 
that could absorb the Exchequer work.  A recruitment exercise was 
therefore required, and job adverts were placed in November 2020 for an 
Exchequer and Procurement Manager, Exchequer Team Leader, an 
Application Support Analyst (to initially sit with this team and then move to 
the centralised IT application support team), and four Exchequer Officers.  
Interviews were conducted during December 2020 and job offers for all 
posts made before the Christmas break.  The team members joined on a 
phased basis from January 2021 to March 2021 with all posts filled in time 
for 1 April 2021 go live.  In the lead up to 1 April the team concentrated on 
identifying and understanding all processes and activities required, creating 
procedure notes, and familiarising themselves with the Unit4 system.  They 
also worked with Unit4, Capita, and Bottomline to achieve a successful go-
live in April.  Unfortunately, during this period the Application Support 
Analyst received another offer of employment and decided to leave the 
councils on 31 March 2021.  To avoid service disruption during a 
recruitment exercise, the councils commissioned the services of an 
application support company (Techmetis) to provide support until the vacant 
post was filled.  The amount of support purchased was set at a level 
equivalent to the salary costs for the Application Support Analyst to remain 
within agreed budgets. 

 

Page 77

Agenda Item 10



 

\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\3\AI00015341\$y0idfwct.docx 
5 

 

11. Many of the above activities had to be completed via remote working as officers 
across the councils grappled with the consequences of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Post 1 April 2021 experience 

12. For the first 2 months the Exchequer team found delivery of the new service 
extremely challenging. As expected, a backlog of supplier invoices had built-up 
during the system downtime resulting from the Unit4 upgrade, and changes in 
process resulting from the upgrade needed to be communicated to service teams.  
System configuration changes were required as a result of historic system 
administration processes, and fundamental changes arising from the upgrade path 
- working through multiple (16) versions.  The result of these issues meant there 
was an initial period of “firefighting”.  Notwithstanding this, the councils were able 
to collect direct debits from customers and make payments to suppliers within the 
first two weeks of operation (6 and 9 April respectively). 

13. By early summer things had begun to settle down as the Exchequer team, and 
wider service teams across the councils, gained more knowledge and experience 
of the upgraded Unit4 system.  Within the Exchequer team additional temporary 
resources were recruited to help clear the supplier invoice backlog, and procedure 
notes were constantly updated, with processes refined as team knowledge 
developed. 

14. Once Autumn had arrived, the service had very much stabilised and, whilst there 
remains room for improvement in terms of refining processes, in conjunction with 
service teams, the councils are now experiencing a stable Exchequer service.  The 
team is beginning to focus on rolling out service improvements by taking full 
advantage of functionality offered by the Unit4 system.  Focussed training for 
service teams will be offered to enable them to increase their knowledge and 
understanding.  The team will also be looking at matters such as Aged Debt and 
improved management information to help improve the councils’ overall financial 
standing. 

Internal Audit review of the Exchequer Service 

15. As part of its 2021/22 internal audit plan the councils’ Internal Audit service has 
reviewed the Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable elements of the 
Exchequer service. 

16. The 2021/22 Accounts Payable (Creditors) audit made seven recommendations, 
two of which were classified as medium risk and five as low risk.  An overall 
assurance rating of Satisfactory Assurance was given. 

17. The 2021/22 Accounts Receivable (Debtors) audit made two recommendations, 
both of which were classified as low risk.  An overall assurance rating of Full 
Assurance was given. 

Consideration of additional Internal Audit fieldwork 

18. The insourcing of Exchequer Services after 15 years of outsourced operation, 
whilst at the same time upgrading the FMS for the first time in ten years, taking 
direct control of the IMS, and procuring a new BACS Bureau service, was a major 
undertaking which presented considerable risk. 

Page 78

Agenda Item 10



 

\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\3\AI00015341\$y0idfwct.docx 
6 

 

 

19. However, as a result of the programme of work detailed above, and in conjunction 
with the two independent Internal Audit reports (which focussed solely on the in-
house Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable processes), officers consider 
the insourcing of Exchequer Services, and FMS upgrade, to have been a success.  
Furthermore, it is considered that the councils are now in a strong position to 
further enhance financial processes, by taking advantage of a modern FMS, to 
support the councils’ financial resilience. 

20. Notwithstanding the above, Committee members are invited to consider whether 
they want Internal Audit to provide independent assurance on any areas of 
concern which are outside the scope of the 2021/22 Accounts Payable/Accounts 
Receivable key financial audits. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

21. There are no climate and ecological impact implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications 

22. There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications 

23. There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Risks 

24. There are no additional risks arising from this report. 

Other Implications 

25. There are no other implications 

Conclusion 

26. During 2020 the councils commenced a major project to fundamentally change 
their financial operations.  Despite the tight timescale, and the many moving parts 
of the project, as well as being conducted during a pandemic, officers believe it has 
been a success.  Within a few months of go-live operation the new Exchequer 
team has been able to deliver a settled and professional service for the councils 
which provides a strong platform to embark on a programme of further work to 
support the councils’ operations. 

27. Independent reviews have already been undertaken and support officers’ views, 
but if further assurance is required by this Committee, officers welcome further 
fieldwork by Internal Audit. 

Background Papers 

 Exchequer Services Review 

 September 2020 Cabinet papers (confidential) 

Page 79

Agenda Item 10



 

\\savvpspfil02.capitacouncilspartnership.co.uk\modgov\data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\3\AI00015341\$y0idfwct.docx 
7 

 

 Internal Audit Report: Creditor Payments 2021/2022 

 Internal Audit Report: Sundry Debtors 2021/2022  

Page 80

Agenda Item 10



 

  

 

Joint Audit and Governance 

Committee 
 

 
  
Report of Head of Legal and Democratic and Monitoring Officer 

Author: Patrick Arran 

Telephone: 07773 302122 

E-mail: patrick.arran@southandvale.gov.uk 

 

 

DATE: 29 March 2022 
 

Oxfordshire Model Code of Conduct 

Recommendation(s). It is recommended that the committee 

Approve the Oxfordshire Code of Conduct appended to this report and commend it to  

the councils for adoption. 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To provide the committee with a draft model Code of Conduct to consider and, if 
approved, recommend to the councils for adoption. 

Strategic Objectives  

2. Openness and Accountability (South), Working in an open and inclusive way (Vale) 

Background 

3. Section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 (the Act) places a duty on relevant authorities 
to promote and maintain high standards of conduct. In order to discharge its duty a 
council must adopt a Code dealing with the conduct that is expected of members 
of the authority when they are acting in that capacity. Section 28 of the Act 
provides that a relevant authority must secure that a Code adopted by it is, when 
viewed as a whole, consistent with the Nolan Principles. There is also a 
requirement to ensure that appropriate measures are taken to record and declare 
interests. Other than these requirements, it is a matter for each council to adopt a 
Code that is relevant to its particular circumstances. There is power to amend or 
replace a Code as circumstances dictate, but the Code must be adopted by full 
Council. 

4. South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils (the councils) have 
adopted a Code of Conduct for members which forms part of the shared 

Page 81

Agenda Item 11



 

 
2 

 

Constitution.  The adopted Code is one which had previously been agreed on an 
Oxfordshire wide basis in 2016. 

5. The Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) undertook a review of the 
ethical framework for members with its report being published in January 2019. 
The CSPL review concluded that robust standards arrangements are needed to 
safeguard local democracy, maintain high standards of conduct, and to protect 
ethical practice in local government. The terms of reference for the review were, to 
examine the structures, processes and practices in local government in England 
for: 

 maintaining Codes of Conduct for local councillors 

 investigating breaches fairly and with due process 

 enforcing Codes and imposing sanctions for misconduct 

 declaring interests and managing conflicts of interest 

 whistleblowing 

6. The CSPL also assessed whether the existing structures, processes and practices 
are conducive to high standards of conduct in local government and were to make 
any recommendations for how they can be improved. The full report can be 
accessed here 

7. The aim of the Localism Act was to place matters such as the Code of Conduct 
within the hands of individual councils, but in doing so there are now considerable 
variations in approach and content. The CSPL heard evidence that the variation 
between Codes, even where the Codes do not differ in quality, is problematic as it 
creates confusion among councillors who may be serving at multiple tiers of local 
government. It also found that the current situation creates confusion among 
members of the public over what is required of different councillors. This is the also 
the experience of the Monitoring Officer since working in England. (Wales has a 
mandatory model Code) 

8. Consequently, the CSPL concluded that there should be a national model Code of 
Conduct, but that this should not be mandatory, and could be adapted by individual 
authorities.  It was recommended that the model Code should be drafted by the 
Local Government Association, given their significant leadership role in the sector, 
in consultation with representative bodies of councillors and officers of all tiers of 
local government. Part of the CSPL recommendations was the introduction of 
sanctions for breaches of the Code, alongside an appeals process within the ambit 
of the Local Government Ombudsman but this aspect was outside the scope of the 
LGA consultation as it requires legislative changes by Government. 

  A Model Code 

9. The Local Government Association (“the LGA”) released a draft Model Member 
Code of Conduct for consultation on 8 June 2020. Its aim was stated to be that it 
would be: 

“…concise, written in plain English and be understandable to members, officers 
and the public. The draft Model Member Code has been designed to aid members  

Page 82

Agenda Item 11

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/777315/6.4896_CO_CSPL_Command_Paper_on_Local_Government_Standards_v4_WEB.PDF


 

 
3 

 

in all tiers of local government model the behaviours and high standards that  
anyone would expect from a person holding public office. Equally, it articulates  
behaviour which falls below the standards that would be expected of council  
members.” 

10. There was extensive consultation and response on the draft Model which resulted 
in some changes to the draft and the finalised Model Code was released on 23 
December 2020.  It incorporated the Committee on Standards in Public Life 
recommendations on Local Government Ethical Standards and representations 
from its membership. 

11. The Oxfordshire Secretary’s and Monitoring Officers Group (OSMOG) have 
collaborated on a joint Code previously and have been discussing amending the 
current joint Code, a move which has been supported by Oxfordshire Association 
of Local Councils.  It was decided that the LGA Model Code would be suitably 
adapted to provide a new model Code for Oxfordshire which could be adopted 
across all tiers of government so that members would work to the same Code no 
matter which organisation they are a member of.  All Monitoring Officers are 
therefore recommending the Code appended to this report to their councils for 
adoption. 

When Does the Code Apply? 

12. The Code will apply to members when they are acting in their official capacity, 
misuse their position or their actions could give the impression to a reasonable 
member of the public with knowledge of all of the facts that one is acting as a 
councillor. The latter aspect is one of the most difficult for members of the public to 
understand as there is a perception that councillors are always ‘on duty’, that is 
that members are bound by the Code at all times. This has gained prevalence in 
recent times due to the impact of social media. 

13. The legal position under the Localism Act, is that the Code can only apply when 
the member is acting in the capacity of an elected councillor. Many Codes reflect 
the definition set out in the old model Code and extend the applicability of the Code 
to cover situations where a member is acting or appearing or purporting to act as a 
member or representative of the Council. This is intended to cover the ‘don’t you 
know who I am’ situation, which is thankfully rare, but there is a clear gap in the 
law with many Codes being ‘stretched’ to include application to members where 
the law may not permit, particularly as a consequence of social media activity. 
There are of course shades of grey as to when a member is acting in that capacity 
and the CPSL recognised this which is why it recommended that there should be a 
rebuttable presumption that the person is acting in the capacity of a member 
unless they demonstrate that they were not. However, this would require a change 
in the law. 

14. The Code will apply to all forms of communication and interaction. This is intended 
to cover the increase in use of social media by members and that there is 
sometimes confusion as to whether members are acting in their official capacity 
when operating outside of formal Council processes, for example on social media. 

Content of the Code 

15. The CSPL recognised that: 

Page 83

Agenda Item 11



 

 
4 

 

“A Code of Conduct is not a values or vision statement for an organisation. It 
therefore needs to state clearly what is required of councillors rather than an 
aspiration or aim. Often this will mean phrasing requirements in terms of what 
councillors ‘must not’ do. The requirements should also be enforceable: Codes 
should not include provisions such as ‘councillors must be aware of...” 

16. The current Code adopted by the councils does not fully comply with the 
requirements of the CSPL in that it does not clearly tell councillors what they 
should or should not do.  Furthermore, it does not cover a number of aspects that 
one would expect to see in a Code such as a definition of bullying and harassment 
and bringing the office of councillor or the Council into disrepute.  The section on 
declaration of interests also falls short in that it focusses solely on disclosable 
interests which can lead to councillors overlooking conflicts of interest which may 
not have a monetary element attached. 

17. The CSPL issued 15 best practice recommendations, one of which was that the 
Code should provide definitions of bullying and harassment. These are now 
contained in the proposed Code.  Members will recall that the Arrangements for 
considering complaints under the Code which was recently adopted by the 
councils incorporated all of the other recommendations which apply to them. 

18. The proposed Code introduces the requirement to treat other councillors, officers 
and members of the public with respect. This does not prevent councillors from 
having a viewpoint and there will still be the ability to express challenge or disagree 
with opinions, but the line is rightly drawn at personal attack. There is the 
introduction of a definition of bullying and harassment as mentioned above. A 
prohibition on bullying and harassment is found in most Codes, but the Model 
Code introduces the definitions required by the CSPL. 

19. In terms of the main changes, declarations of interests have been clarified. 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests are set by Regulation so cannot be altered and 
remain the same as before. However, the Code re-states the position in relation to 
other interests which are now referred to as other ‘registrable’ interests which are 
set out in Table 2 of the Code.  There is a fundamental change to the approach to 
interests other than DPI’s in that the concepts of financial interests which are not 
DPI’s and of well-being have been introduced. There are further requirements 
around gifts and hospitality to make the position around perception of undue 
influence clearer. 

20. The best way to summarise the change to declaration of interests is that they 
reflect what used to be known as personal and prejudicial interests prior to the 
introduction of DPI’s. if the proposed Code is adopted, the Monitoring Officer will 
be providing training. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

21. There are no climate and / or ecological implications arising from the 
recommendations in this report. 

Financial Implications 

22. There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations in this report. 

Page 84

Agenda Item 11



 

 
5 

 

Legal Implications 

23. All legal matters are set out in the body of the report.   

Risks 

24. There are no direct risks arising from the recommendations in this report.  If the 
Oxfordshire Code is not adopted by the councils, they will be out of step with the 
other councils in the county and the current Code of Conduct, is in the view of the 
Monitoring Officer, not fit for purpose. 

Other Implications 

25. There are no other implications. 

Conclusion 

26. The proposed Code follows the format of the LGA Model Code and the Monitoring 
Officer recommends that the committee consider commending it to each full 
Council for adoption. 

Background Papers 

None 

  

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 11



Page 1 of 16 

 

 

Oxfordshire Councils’ Councillor Code of Conduct 2022 

 

1.0 Introduction 

The Council has a duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by members 

and co-opted members of the Council, and formally adopt a code of conduct, in 

accordance with the Localism Act 2011. 

 

2.0 Purpose of the Code of Conduct 

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a Councillor, in modelling the 

behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and to set 

out the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you.  It is also to 

protect you, the public, fellow Councillors, local authority officers and the reputation of 

local government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of all Councillors and 

your specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct.  The fundamental aim of the 

Code is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of the Councillor and in Local 

Government. 

 

3.0 Definitions 

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, a “Councillor” means a member or co-opted 

member of the local authority. A “co-opted member” is defined in the Localism Act 2011 

Section 27(4) as “a person who is not a member of the authority but who 

3.1  is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, or; 

3.2  is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint committee or joint 

sub- committee of the authority; 

and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of 

that committee or sub-committee”. 

 

4.0 General Principles of Councillor Conduct 

Everyone in public office and all who serve the public or deliver public services, including 

Councillors and local authority officers, should uphold the Seven Principles of Public Life, 

also known as the Nolan Principles, (see Appendix A). 

Building on these principles of selflessness, objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty 

and integrity and leadership, the following general principles have been developed 

specifically for the role of Councillor. 

In accordance with the public trust placed in Councillors, on all occasions a Councillor 

shall: 

 act with integrity and honesty 

 act lawfully 

 treat all persons fairly and with respect; and 

 lead by example and act in a way that secures public confidence in the role of 

Councillor. 

Page 86

Agenda Item 11

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2


Page 2 of 16 

 

 impartially exercise their responsibilities in the interests of the local community 

 not improperly seek to confer an advantage, or disadvantage, on any person 

 avoid conflicts of interest 

 exercise reasonable care and diligence; and 

 ensure that public resources are used prudently in accordance with the local 

authority’s requirements and in the public interest. 

 

These general principles have been incorporated into the obligations of the Code of 

Conduct as set out below. 

 

5.0 Application of the Code of Conduct 

This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of acceptance 

of the office of Councillor or attend your first meeting as a co-opted member and 

continues to apply to you until you cease to be a Councillor. 

This Code of Conduct applies to you when you are acting in your capacity as a Councillor 

which may include when: 

• you misuse your position as a  Councillor 

• Your actions would give the impression to a reasonable member of the public with 

knowledge of all the facts that you are acting as a Councillor; 

The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including at face-to-face 

meetings, at online or telephone meetings, in written communication, in verbal 

communication, in non-verbal communication and in electronic and social media 

communication, posts, statements and comments. 

Your Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the Code of 

Conduct, and you are encouraged to seek advice from your Monitoring Officer on any 

matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct. Town and parish Councillors are 

encouraged to seek advice from their Clerk, who may refer matters to the Monitoring 

Officer. 

 

6.0 Standards of Councillor Conduct 

This section sets out the obligations (in bold below), which are the minimum standards of 

conduct required of a Councillor. Should a Councillor’s conduct fall short of these 

standards, a complaint may be made against them, which may result in action being taken. 

Guidance is also included below each obligation to help explain the reasons for the 

obligations and how they should be followed. 

 

 

 

6.1 Respect 

A Councillor: 

6.1.1 Shall treat everyone, including other Councillors and members of the 

Page 87

Agenda Item 11



Page 3 of 16 

 

public with respect. 

 

6.1.2  Shall treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of 

partner organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with 

respect and respect the role they play. 

Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written word. 

Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a Councillor, 

you can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions and policies 

in a robust but civil manner. You should not, however, subject individuals, groups of 

people or organisations to personal attack. 

 

In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude and 

offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in Councillors. 

In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from everyone. If members of 

the public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop any 

conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to the relevant social 

media provider and/or the police. This also applies to fellow councillors, where action 

could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct, and local authority 

employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local authority’s councillor- 

officer protocol. 

 

6.2 Bullying, Harassment and Discrimination  

A Councillor: 

 

6.2.1 Shall not bully any person. 

 

6.2.2 Shall not harass any person. 

 

6.2.3 Shall promote equalities and not discriminate against any person. 

 

Bullying is offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse 

of power through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. 

Bullying might be a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-

face, on social media, in emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social 

events and may not always be obvious or noticed by others. 

The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as; conduct that causes 

alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such conduct on at 

least two occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose unwanted 

communications and contact upon a person in a manner that could be expected to cause 

distress or fear in any reasonable person. 

Discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected characteristic. 

Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's identity defined by the 

Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 

partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. 

Page 88

Agenda Item 11



Page 4 of 16 

 

Legislation places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a central role to 

play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's performance and 

strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public commitment to equality across 

public services. 

 

6.3 Impartiality of Officers of the Council 

 

A Councillor: 

 

6.3.1 Shall not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of 

anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the local authority. 

Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral, (other than 

political assistants where applicable). They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in 

a way that would undermine their neutrality. A Councillor may question officers in order 

to understand, for example, their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the 

content of a report that they have written. However, a Councillor must not try and force 

them to act differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so 

would prejudice their professional integrity. 

 

6.4  Confidentiality and access to information  

A Councillor: 

 

6.4.1 Shall not disclose information either given to them in confidence by 

anyone or acquired by them which they believe, or ought reasonably to 

be aware, is of a confidential nature, unless 

i. They have received the consent of a person authorised to give it; 

or 

ii. They are required by law to do so; or 

iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of 

obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third party 

agrees not to disclose the information to any other person; or 

iv. the disclosure is reasonable and in the public interest; and also 

made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable 

requirements of the local authority and consultation with the 

Monitoring Officer has taken place prior to its release. 

 

6.4.2 Shall not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of their role 

as a Councillor for the advancement of themselves, their friends, family 

members, employer or business interests. 

 

6.4.3 Shall not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled 

to by law. 

 

6.4.4 When making decisions on behalf of, or as part of, the Council shall have 

due regard to any professional advice provided by the Council’s 

Officers. 

Page 89

Agenda Item 11



Page 5 of 16 

 

 

6.5 Disrepute  

 

A Councillor: 

 

6.5.1 Shall not bring their role or local authority into disrepute. 

 

As a Councillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community and your 

actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary members of 

the public. You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse impact on you, 

other Councillors and/or your local authority and may lower the public’s confidence in 

your or your local authority’s ability to discharge your/its functions.  

 

6.6 Use of position  

A Councillor: 

 

6.6.1 Shall not use, or attempt to use, their position improperly to the advantage 

or disadvantage of anyone. 

A Councillor should not take advantage of opportunities, responsibilities and privileges to 

further their own or others’ private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly. 

 

6.7 Local authority Resources and Facilities  

A Councillor: 

6.7.1 Shall not misuse council resources. 

 

6.7.2 Shall, when using the resources of the local authority or authorising their 

use by others, act in accordance with the local authority's requirements; 

and ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes 

unless that use could reasonably be regarded as likely to facilitate, or 

be conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the local authority or 

of the office to which they have been elected or appointed. 

A Councillor may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist 

them in carrying out their duties as a Councillor. Examples may include office support, 

stationery, equipment such as phones, computers and transport and access and use of 

local authority buildings and rooms. 

 

6.8 Compliance with the Code of Conduct  

A Councillor: 

 

6.8.1 Shall undertake Code of Conduct training as required by the local 

authority. 

 

6.8.2 Shall cooperate with any Code of Conduct assessment, investigation, 

hearing and/or determination. 

 

Page 90

Agenda Item 11



Page 6 of 16 

 

6.8.3 Shall not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to 

be involved with the administration of any investigation or proceedings. 

 

6.8.4 Shall comply with any sanction imposed on them following a finding that 

they have breached the Code of Conduct. 

It is extremely important for a Councillor to demonstrate high standards, to have your 

actions open to scrutiny and not to undermine public trust in the local authority or its 

governance. If you do not understand, or are concerned about the local authority’s 

processes in handling a complaint, you should raise this with the Monitoring Officer. 

 

7.0 Registering and Declaring Interests 

 

You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and 

fellow councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest. 

The register is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue 

arises. The register also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a 

willingness to be held accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding 

whether or not you should disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for 

you to know early on if others think that a potential conflict might arise. It is also 

important that the public know about any interest that might have to be disclosed by 

you or other councillors when making or taking part in decisions, so that decision 

making is seen by the public as open and honest. This helps to ensure that public 

confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained. 

 

7.1 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 

A Councillor must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted member, 

notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest as defined by 

regulations made by the Secretary of State (see Appendix B), where the pecuniary 

interest is yours, your spouse’s or civil partner’s, or is the pecuniary interest of somebody 

with whom you are living with as a husband or wife, or as if you were civil partners. 

Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and 

maintain a register of interests of members of the authority. 

 

You must disclose the interest at any meeting of the Council at which you are present, 

where you have a disclosable interest in any matter being considered and where the 

matter is not a ‘sensitive interest’. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you must disclose the fact 

that you have an interest but do not have to disclose the nature of it. (A sensitive interest 

is an interest which, in the opinion of the Monitoring Officer, if disclosed, could lead to the 

Councillor, or a person connected with them, being subjected to violence or intimidation.) 

You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should disclose an interest 

in a meeting. 

 

Following any disclosure of an interest not on the Council’s register, or the subject of 

pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days 

beginning with the date of disclosure.  

Page 91

Agenda Item 11



Page 7 of 16 

 

 

Unless dispensation has been granted, by the Monitoring Officer, you may not participate 

in any discussion of, or vote on, or discharge any function related to any matter in which 

you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. You must withdraw from the room or chamber 

when the meeting discusses and votes on the matter. 

 

Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or being 

considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must 

notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps 

in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it . 

 

You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up to date and within 28 days of 

becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the 

Monitoring Officer. 

 

You should note that failure to register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as set 

out in Appendix B is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011. 

 

7.2 Other Registerable Interests 

 

You must also register your other registerable interests with the Monitoring Officer within 

28 days of taking office and ensure these are kept up to date by notifying any changes 

within 28 days. 

 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or 

wellbeing of one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Appendix C), you must 

disclose the interest.  

Wellbeing can be described as a condition of contentedness, healthiness and happiness; 

anything that could be said to affect a person’s quality of life, either positively or negatively, 

is likely to affect their wellbeing.  

 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at 

the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 

must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a 

‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 

Where you have an Other Registerable Interest on a matter to be considered or is being 

considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must 

notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps 

in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

  

7.3 Non-Registerable Interests 

 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or 

wellbeing and does not fall under disclosable pecuniary interests at 7.1 above, or the 

financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the 

interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to 

speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the 

Page 92

Agenda Item 11



Page 8 of 16 

 

matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If 

it is a sensitive interest you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects your own financial interest or wellbeing, 

a financial interest or wellbeing of a relative or close associate or a financial interest or 

wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set out at 7.2 above 

and appendix C you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can 

remain in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied: 

Where a matter affects the financial interest or well-being: 

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants 

of the ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would 

affect your view of the wider public interest 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at 

the meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter 

and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a 

‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 

Where you have a Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be considered or is being 

considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must 

notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps 

in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

 

8.0 Gifts and Hospitality  

A Councillor: 

 

8.1 Shall not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, 

which could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a 

reasonable suspicion of influence to show favour from persons seeking 

to acquire, develop or do business with the local authority or from 

persons who may apply to the local authority for any permission, licence 

or other significant advantage. 

 

8.2 Shall register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £50 within 28 days of its receipt. 

 

8.3 Shall register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or hospitality 

that they have been offered but have refused to accept. 

 

The presumption should always be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality but there 

may be times when such a refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case, 

you could accept it but must ensure it is publicly registered.  

You do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as a 

Councillor. 

It is appropriate to accept normal expenses and hospitality associated with your duties 

as a Councillor. 

Page 93

Agenda Item 11



Page 9 of 16 

 

Appendices 

Appendix A – The Seven Principles of Public Life 

The principles are: 

 

Selflessness 

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 

Integrity 

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people 

or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They 

should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for 

themselves, their family, or their friends. They must disclose and resolve any interests 

and relationships. 

Objectivity 

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, 

using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

Accountability 

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and 

must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 

Openness 

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. 

Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful 

reasons for so doing. 

Honesty 

Holders of public office should be truthful. 

Leadership 

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They 

should actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge 

poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

Page 94

Agenda Item 11



Page 10 of 16 

 

Appendix B: Discloseable Pecuniary Interests 

 

“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you 

are aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below. 

 

"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as 

husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 

This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the 

Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 

 

Subject 

 

 

Description 

 

 
Employment, office, trade, profession 

or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 

vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial 

benefit (other than from the council) made to the 

councillor during the previous 12-month period for 

expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out 

his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her 

election expenses. 

 

This includes any payment or financial benefit 

from a trade union within the meaning of the 

Trade Union and Labour Relations 

(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

 

Page 95

Agenda Item 11

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


Page 11 of 16 

 

 Contracts Any contract made between the councillor or 

his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with 

whom the councillor is living as if they were 

spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which such 

person is a partner, or an incorporated body of 

which such person is a director* or a body that 

such person has a beneficial interest in the 

securities of*) and the council — 

(a) under which goods or services are to be 

provided or works are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

 

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is within the 

area of the council. 

 

‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest 

or right in or over land which does not give the 

councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 

person with whom the councillor is living as if they 

were spouses/ civil partners (alone or jointly with 

another) a right to occupy  or to receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy 

land in the area of the council for a month or 

longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 

knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the council; and 

(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or 

his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with 

whom the councillor is living as if they were 

spouses/ civil partners is a partner of or a director* 

of or has a beneficial interest in the securities* of. 

 

Page 96

Agenda Item 11



Page 12 of 16 

 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body 

where— 

(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has a 

place of business or land in the area of the 

council; and 

(b) either— 

(i) ) the total nominal value of the securities* 

exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 

issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) if  the  share  capital  of  that  body  is  of 

more than one class, the  total  nominal value of the 

shares of any one class in  which the councillor, or 

his/ her spouse or civil partner or the person with 

whom the councillor is living as if they were 

spouses/civil partners have a beneficial interest 

exceeds one hundredth of the total issues share 

capital of that class.  

 

 

* ‘Director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and 

provident society. 

* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 

collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 

Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 

building society. 

 

  

Page 97

Agenda Item 11



Page 13 of 16 

 

Appendix C: Disclosure of Other Registrable Interests 

 

You must register as an Other Registrable Interest: 

 

a) any unpaid directorships 

 

b) any Body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or 

management and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority 

 

c) any Body 

 

(i) exercising functions of a public nature 

(ii) directed to charitable purposes or 

(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or 

policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a 

member or in a position of general control or management 

Page 98

Agenda Item 11



Audit and Governance 

Work Programme 

containing Joint Audit and Governance  
Committee work to be undertaken  

MARCH – JUNE 2022 
 

       
 

 
What is the work programme? 
 
The Audit and Governance Work Programme belongs to South Oxfordshire District Council’s and Vale of White Horse District Council’s 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee and sets out a schedule of work for the period shown above.  It is a rolling plan, subject to 
change at each committee meeting; however, the councils may allocate additional work without notice.   
 

Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

Statement of accounts 
- 2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
Mar 2022 

Simon Hewings, 
Head of Finance 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

To receive an update on 
the progress of the 
2021/22 statement of 
accounts and for the 
committee to consider 
the statement of 
accounting policies. 

  

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 13



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Internal audit activity 
report - fourth quarter 
2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
Mar 2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan 
2020/21. The report will 
summarise the 
outcomes of recent 
internal audit activity for 
the committee to 
consider. 

The committee is 
asked to review the 
report and the main 
issues arising and 
seek assurance that 
action has been or will 
be taken where 
necessary. 
 

 

Internal audit 
management report - 
fourth quarter 2021/22 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
Mar 2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise progress 
against the audit plan, 
and summarise 
priorities. 

This is a recurring 
agenda item and is 
updated at each 
meeting. 
 

 

Internal audit plan - 
2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
Mar 2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service. 

To approve the internal 
audit plan for 2022/23. 
 

 

Insourcing of 
exchequer services 
and financial 
management system 
upgrade 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
Mar 2022 

Ben Watson, 
Exchequer and 
Procurement 
Manager 
ben.watson@sou
thandvale.gov.uk 

To receive a progress 
update on the current 
position and ongoing 
work related to the 
insourcing of Exchequer 
Services from Capita. 

To receive both 
comments on the 
progress of insourcing 
and any follow-up work 
the committee would 
seek. 
 

 

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 13



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Adoption of 
Oxfordshire code of 
conduct for 
councillors 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
Mar 2022 

Patrick Arran, 
Head of Legal 
and Democratic 
patrick.arran@so
uthandvale.gov.u
k 

The committee is asked 
to consider the 
proposed code of 
conduct, and if 
approved, recommend 
to the councils for 
adoption. 

To consider the 
proposed code of 
conduct. 
 

 

Health and safety 
progress review 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 29 
Mar 2022 

Deborah Porter 
Deborah.Porter@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
reports on health and 
safety. 

To review and 
comment on the 
report. 
 

 

Internal audit activity 
report - first quarter 
2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan. The 
report will summarise 
the outcomes of recent 
audit activity for the 
committee to consider. 

The committee is 
asked to review the 
report and the main 
issues arising and 
seek assurance that 
action has been or will 
be taken as necessary. 
 

 

Internal audit 
management report - 
first quarter 2022/23 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Victoria Dorman-
Smith, Internal 
Audit Manager 
victoria.dorman-
smith@southand
vale.gov.uk 

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the audit 
plan. 

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise progress 
against the audit pan, 
and summarise 
priorities. 
 

 

Health and safety 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Deborah Porter, 
Health and Safety 
Advisor 
Deborah.Porter@
southandvale.gov
.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
reports on health and 
safety. 

To review and 
comment on the 
report. 
 

 

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 13



Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes 

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils’ Audit and Governance Work Programme 

Risk management 
 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 5 Jul 
2022 

Harry Barrington-
Mountford, Head 
of Policy and 
Programmes 
harry.barrington-
mountford@sout
handvale.gov.uk 

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
progress reports on the 
implementation of the 
risk management 
framework. 

To review and 
comment on progress. 
 

 

 

 

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 13


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Statement of accounts - 2021/22
	Appendix 1 South Accounting Policies 2021-22
	Appendix 2 Vale Accounting Policies 21-22
	Appendix 3 Response to CIPFA Emergency Proposals

	7 Internal audit activity report - fourth quarter 2021/22
	8 Internal audit management report - fourth quarter 2021/22
	2a App 1 - Progress Against Audit Plan 2021-2022.xlsx - Management Report
	2b App 2 - Q4 Audit Plan Schedule 2021-2022.xlsx - Management Report

	9 Internal audit plan - 2022/23
	3a. Appendix 1 Schedule of Auditable Activity 2022-2023.xlsx - Internal Audit Plan
	3b. Appendix 2 Internal Audit Allocation 2022-2023.docx - Internal Audit Plan
	3c. Appendix 3 Proposed Internal Audits 2022-2023.docx - Internal Audit Plan

	10 Insourcing of exchequer services and financial management system upgrade
	11 Adoption of Oxfordshire code of conduct for councillors
	Proposed OSMOG code

	13 Work programme

